




PNB Gilts Annual Report 2019-201

OUR MISSION AND VISION

To be a leader in the  
Primary Dealer Business  

and 
to be known a Knowledge Based, Research Oriented 

and
Quality Conscious Company maximising wealth for 

Shareholders

Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders ............................................................................2

Board’s Report...........................................................................................................4

Management Discussion and Analysis ....................................................................28

Report on Corporate Governance ...........................................................................35

Annual Business Responsibility Report ...................................................................51

Financial Review .....................................................................................................61

Independent Auditor’s Report and Comments of the C&AG of India ...................... 62

Balance Sheet .........................................................................................................73

 ...................................................................................75

Statement of Changes in Equity  .............................................................................77

Statement of Cash Flows ........................................................................................78

Notes to Financial Statements.................................................................................80

Schedule to Balance Sheet of a Non-Deposit taking

Non-Banking Financial Company ..........................................................................134

Financials at a Glance ...........................................................................................138

Notice of AGM .......................................................................................................139

E-Communication Registration form......................................................................149

Safe Harbour Statement

Statements in this Annual Report describing the Company’s objectives, expectations or forecasts may be forward looking within the meaning 
of applicable laws and regulations. While these forward-looking statements exemplify our judgment and future expectations concerning the 
development of our business, a number of risks and uncertainties and other important factors viz. economic conditions affecting demand and 
supply, government regulations, natural calamities and so on, may cause actual development and results to differ materially from our expectations. 
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Chairman’s Letter to Shareholders

Dear Shareholders,

It is my privilege to write to you as the Chairman of PNB Gilts Ltd. I am happy to 
present the Annual Report for Financial Year 2019-20 to you.

The year 2019-20 was an unprecedented period for the global economy as the 
COVID19 crisis precipitated into a full blown economic crisis of a magnitude 
comparable to the Great Depression of the 1929. The COVID19 health crisis 
resulted in worldwide lockdowns which disrupted demand and supply chains 
across all the global economies simultaneously. The world economy is projected 
to contract by 4.9 per cent in 2020 according to IMF world economic outlook.

to falling consumer demand and private investment. During the year, real GDP 
growth declined from 6.1 per cent in FY 2018-19 to 4.2 per cent (provisional) in 

narrowing to 0.9 per cent of GDP in FY 2019-20 from 2.1 per cent in FY 2018-19 

sharp fall in tax and non-tax revenues and burgeoning government expenditure 

The Financial Year 2019-20 was marked by falling interest rates and availability 
of surplus liquidity in the banking system, which aided demand for government 

which resulted in sharp volatility especially during the second half of the year. With 
respect to the monetary policy stance, the overriding objective of RBI remained 
supporting economic growth as a result of which it maintained an accommodative 
stance throughout the year, reducing the policy rates by an unprecedented 185 
bps and infusing massive liquidity in the system. During the year, RBI remained 
in combat mode and used both conventional and unconventional tools to ease 
the persisting economic strain and the additional stress caused by the COVID19 

Your Company navigated through the exceptionally challenging time and 
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2019-20. During the year, Company strengthened its core business 

resulted in augmenting the core income. Company also enhanced its 
retail business segment and forayed into Debt Capital Market (DCM) 
Business as arrangers of primary issuances of Corporate Bonds. Your 
Company posted a PBT of Rs. 249.81 crore in FY 2019-20, which is a 
200 per cent increase from a PBT of Rs. 83.02 crore posted in FY 2018-
19.  The NOF of the Company increased to Rs. 1002.19 crore as on 
March 31, 2020 as against Rs. 885.66 crore as on March 31, 2019. The 
Company remained adequately capitalized during the entire year and 
capital adequacy ratio as on March 31, 2020 stood at 32.47 per cent 
against RBI’s minimum stipulation of 15 per cent. I am glad to inform 
you that in time of crisis and otherwise as well, your Company made 
a difference by contributing towards various social causes. Company 
undertook CSR projects through various implementing agencies and 
also contributed Rs. 2.75 crore (Rs. 1.75 crore in FY 2019-20 and Rs. 
1.00 crore in FY 2020-21) to PM-CARES Fund set up by Government 
of India for dealing with the ongoing COVID19 health crisis.  

successfully achieving the stipulations laid down by the regulator. 
Besides, effective risk management systems kept the Company’s 

shareholders has been our driving force. We are immensely grateful to 
you for your cooperation and support which has helped us manage the 

Forward Guidance

The ongoing COVID19 crisis has been an unprecedented challenge 
for individuals and organizations alike. The magnitude of the crisis was 
unforeseen and management of the same brought to the fore measures 
that could well have been thought of as implausible during normal 
times. Your Company remained proactive and invoked its Business 
Continuity Plan in order to tide over the crisis without hampering the 

Your Company is charting a growth path and we intend to make this 
journey strong and sustainable with the right mix of a strong team and 

that with a strong Business Continuity Plan, a dynamic and proactive 
management and the trust of our stakeholders, your Company shall 
weather the crisis and chart newer heights in the years to come.

I, on behalf of our Company, extend my gratitude to all the stakeholders- 
clients, shareholders, directors and employees for their persistent 
support, unwavering trust and tireless efforts to strengthen the market 
position of the Company. I assure that your Company will continue to 
remain committed to enhance value for all the stakeholders.

Yours Sincerely,

Sd/-
Date :  September 4, 2020 (P.P. Pareek)*
 Chairman

* Sh. P. P. Pareek was unanimously elected as Chairman.
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BOARD’S REPORT
Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Twenty Fourth Annual Report together with the Company’s audited 

1.   RESULTS OF OUR OPERATIONS AND STATE OF AFFAIRS

(` in lacs)

For the year ended 
31.03.2020

For the year ended 
31.3.2019

Total Income 88259.87 50801.34
Less : Total Expenditure 55157.72 42499.27
Exception Items   8121.58              -

24980.57 8302.07
Less : Tax Expense 6345.11 3016.29

18635.46 5285.78
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income 18520.27 5230.35

20713.66 18710.60
32472.45 20713.66
     10.35        2.94

above RBI’s target weighed on sentiments and market turned extremely cautious.  Operation twist by RBI did 

Budget weighing on market sentiments.  It was only towards the close of the year, RBI took some unprecedented 
measures in order to mitigate the risks to the economy from the Covid crisis by slashing the repo rate by 75 basis 
points, Reverse Repo rate by 90 basis points & CRR by 1 per cent besides announcing a host of regulatory 

per cent. Thus the 10 year bond yield which opened at 7.35 per cent, touched a high of 7.47 per cent and a low 
of 5.98 per cent closed the year at 6.14 per cent.

(non-payment of principal and interest) and currently there are no default bonds in the books of the company. 

market. With regard to Treasury Bills commitment, the Company exceeded the stipulated success ratio of 40 

turnover ratio (secondary market) stands at 190 times for treasury bills and 422 times for government-dated 
securities as on March 31, 2020 against the minimum RBI stipulation of 10 times and 5 times respectively.

 Impact of COVID-19 

 In the last month of FY 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic developed rapidly into a global crisis, forcing governments 
to enforce lock-down of all economic activity. Your Company, being a Primary Dealer, is in the list of essential 
services provider. Accordingly, the company has not faced any business stoppage / interruption on account of 
lockdown. Based on existing facts and circumstances, the Company does not anticipate any material uncertainties 
which can affect its liquidity position or its ability to continue as a going concern.
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 The Company has ensured the health and well-being of all its employees and continuation of its business 
operations as well without any disruption. From a highly centralized model consisting of work spaces set up 
in different locations of the country, the switch to work from home for employees through its BCP model was 
carried out seamlessly much before the lockdown restrictions imposed by the Government. In this model, work 
from home was enabled to close to 81 per cent of the employees to work remotely and securely. Remaining 

risk management practices and systems etc., has been able to run the business operations successfully. Your 
Company stands committed towards its employees, clients, government and the society. As a measure of CSR, 
your Company during the year 2019-20 has given a sum of Rs. 175.56 lacs to PM Cares Fund set up by the Govt. 
of India for dealing in emergent situations like Covid-19. In addition to this, the company has given Rs. 100 lacs 

 Material Changes and Commitments

of the Company have occurred after the close of the year till the date of this report.

 Capital Adequacy

 Capital adequacy ratio as on March 31, 2020 stood at 32.47 per cent as against the RBI stipulation of 15 per cent.

 Dividend

 Your Board has recommended a dividend of ` 3 (i.e. 30 per cent) per equity share (last year ` 1.40 per equity 

` 5400.30 lacs.

 Transfer to Reserves

 Your Company proposes to transfer ` 3727.09 lacs in Statutory Reserve as required under the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013, the Company proposes not to transfer any sum in General Reserve.

2.   CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

and fairness in all areas of operations. Our workforce is committed towards the protection of the interest of the 
stakeholders including shareholders, creditors, investors, customers, employees, etc. Our policies consistently 
undergo improvements keeping in mind our goal i.e. maximization of value of all the stakeholders.

 We comply with the SEBI and RBI guidelines on Corporate Governance. We have documented our internal code 
on Corporate Governance in compliance of SEBI and RBI guidelines. The Corporate Governance practices 

from M/s Pranav Kumar & Associates, Company Secretaries regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate 
Governance as stipulated in the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
(“the Listing Regulations”) is enclosed with the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ forming part of the Board’s 
Report.

Number of meetings of the Board

details of such meetings are given in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ that forms part of this Board’s Report.

 Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

 During the year 2019-20, Dr. Kamal Gupta (DIN: 00038490), Independent Director, resigned from the directorship 
of the Company w.e.f. June 28, 2019.

 The members in their Annual General Meeting held on August 28, 2019 approved the re -appointment of  
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Sh. P. P. Pareek (DIN : 00615296), as an Independent Director for another term of 5 consecutive years from 
August 30, 2019 to August 29, 2024.

 In the same meeting, the members also approved the following appointments-

2019 to June 27, 2024. 
Dr. T. M. Bhasin (DIN: 03091429) as an Independent Director for a period of 5 years from July 30, 2019 to July 
29, 2024.

Bank as a Non-Executive Director.
Sh. Vikas Goel (DIN: 08322541) as Managing Director & CEO for a period of 3 years from February 01, 2019 to 
January 31, 2022. Sh. Vikas Goel is also Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 

 Further, consequent to completion of tenure as Managing Director & CEO of Punjab National Bank, Sh. Sunil 
Mehta (DIN:07430460), Chairman of the Company resigned from the Board of the Company w.e.f September 
30, 2019.  Your Board places on record its appreciation for the valuable contribution and guidance extended by 
him during his tenure as Chairman.

 Further, in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Articles of Association of the 
Company, Sh. Vikas Goel (DIN: 08322541) shall retire by rotation in the ensuing Annual General Meeting and 
being eligible, offers himself for reappointment.

 The tenure of Smt. Sunita Gupta (DIN: 06902258), Whole-Time Director (designated as ‘Executive Director & 
CFO’) was upto August 31, 2020. Accordingly, she ceased  from her position in Company w.e.f September 1, 2020.

authority.

 Performance Evaluation

 The Company has devised a policy for performance evaluation of Board of its own performance, Independent 
Directors, Non-Independent/Executive Directors and Board level Committees etc.  as required under the provisions 
of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015and 
also Guidance Note on Board Evaluation as prescribed by SEBI. The performance of all the Directors, the Board 
as a whole and its Committees was evaluated after seeking inputs from the directors based on the criteria and 
framework adopted by the Board. The evaluation criteria are based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation 
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017. 

 In a separate meeting of independent directors, performance of non-independent directors, the board as a whole 
and the Chairman of the Company was evaluated, taking into account the views of executive directors and non-
executive directors. 

 The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of individual directors 
on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and committee meetings like 
preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. 

 In the board meeting and meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance of the board, its 
committees, and individual directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of independent directors was 
done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being evaluated.

 Copy of said policy, inter-alia, containing the process and criteria for evaluation is available at Company’s website 
at the link https://www.pnbgilts.com/data/governence/1554113642.pdf

 Familiarization programme

 The details of programme for familiarization of Independent Directors with the Company, their roles, rights, responsibilities 
in the Company, nature of industry in which the Company operates, business model of the Company and related 
matters are placed at Company’s website at the link https://www.pnbgilts.com/data/governence/1576737306.pdf

 Quarterly updates on relevant statutory changes are also circulated to the Directors.
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 Policy on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration etc.

 The policies of the Company on Directors’ Appointment and Remuneration formulates the criteria for 

like remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel, senior management and other employees. The 
policies are appended as Annexure A to the Board’s Report. 

 Declaration by Independent Directors

of independence as prescribed under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, the 

be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties. All the Independent 
Directors have got themselves registered with Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. The Board is of the opinion 

they hold highest standards of integrity. 

 Business Responsibility Report

 Business Responsibility Report for the year under review, as stipulated under Regulation 34(2)(f) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, forms part of the Annual Report.

3. OTHER DISCLOSURES –

 Audit Committee

 The composition of Audit Committee during FY 2019-20 was as under–

Sh. P. P. Pareek Chairman

Dr. Kamal Gupta1 Member

Sh. S. K. Kalra Member
2 Member

3 Member

 1    Relinquished the position of Independent Director and consequently ceased to be a member of the Committee w.e.f. June 28, 2019.  

2    Member of the Committee w.e.f. June 28, 2019. 

3    Member of the Committee w.e.f. November 9, 2019.

 All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the year were accepted by the Board.

 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

 For composition of the CSR Committee during FY 2019-20, please refer the Annual Report on CSR at  
Annexure B.

 The CSR policy of the Company, duly recommended by the CSR Committee and approved by the Board, is 
available at Company’s website at the link https://www.pnbgilts.com/data/governence/1589174288.pdf. During the 
year 2019-20, the scope of activities that can be undertaken under CSR policy of the Company has been widened 

as per the instructions of the Committee and Board. During the year 2019-20, the Company has spent 2 per cent 

 The annual report on the CSR for the year 2019-20 in the prescribed format is presented at Annexure B to the 
Board’s Report.

 Other details of above said and other Committees of the Board are given in the ‘Report on Corporate Governance’ 
forming part of the Board’s Report.
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 Whistle Blower Policy (including Vigil Mechanism)

 Your Company believes in conducting its affairs in a fair and transparent manner by adopting highest standards 
of professionalism, honesty, integrity and ethical behaviour. Your Company is committed to develop a culture 
where it is safe for directors and employees to raise concerns about any wrongful conduct.

 The Board of Directors has approved a Whistle Blower Policy (including Vigil Mechanism), which provides a 
framework to promote a responsible and secure whistle blowing. It protects employees wishing to raise a concern 
about serious irregularities within the Company. The Audit Committee reviews the functioning of this mechanism 
and no employee / director has been denied access to the Audit Committee. During the year under review, no 
such matter has been reported to the Audit Committee. The said policy may be accessed on the Company’s 
website at the link https://www.pnbgilts.com/data/governence/1554113767.pdf

 Contracts and Arrangements with Related Parties

 All the contracts/ arrangements/transactions entered by the company are in ordinary course of business and 
at arm’s length (except those given in form AOC-2 at Annexure C). Further during the year, the company had 
not entered into any contract / arrangement transactions with related parties which could be considered  material 
in accordance with the  company policy / standard operating  procedures (SOP) on related party transactions 
Company’s Policy/SOP on Related party Transactions can be accessed at the Company’s website at the link  
https://www.pnbgilts.com/data/governence/1554113744.pdf

 Necessary disclosure in prescribed form AOC-2 is annexed at Annexure C.

 Subsidiaries

 The Company, being a RBI regulated Primary Dealer, is prohibited to form any subsidiary. As such, the Company 
has not formulated any policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries under SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

 Further, since the Company is not having any subsidiary or associate or joint venture, it is not required to 

already been considered by its parent bank i.e. Punjab National Bank for consolidation.

Directors’ Responsibility Statement

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2020, the applicable accounting 
standards read with the requirements set out under the Schedule III to Companies Act, 2013, have been 
followed and there are no material departures from the same;

(b) the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d)  the Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(f)  the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and 
that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

 Human Resource Management

 Your Company treats its human resources as one of its most important assets. To ensure good human resource 
management in the Company, the Company focuses on all the aspects of employee lifecycle. During their tenure 
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in the Company, employees are motivated through various skill development and volunteering programmes. 
Recreational programmes are also conducted on regular basis so as to create stress-free environment. All the 
while, the Company also creates effective dialogues through various communication channels like face to face 
interactions so as to ensure that feedback reach the relevant teams. In house meetings and training sessions are 
also arranged to engage and develop the employees and to gather ideas around innovation.

 The information required to be disclosed under Section 197(12) and Rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided at Annexure D.

 The information required pursuant to Section 134 read with rule 5(2) of Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 shall be provided upon request. In terms of Section 136 of 
the Act, the report and accounts are being sent to members excluding the information on employee’s particulars 

on working days of the Company up to the date of the ensuing General Meeting. Interested members may write 
to the Company.  No employee is related to any Director of the Company.

 Sexual Harassment at Workplace

 Your company has complied with provisions relating to the Sexual harassment of Women at Workplace 
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Company has constituted Internal Complaints Committee 
and has put in place a formal policy for prevention of sexual harassment of its employees at workplace. During 

 Particulars of Loans given, investment made, guarantees given and securities provided

 The information required to be disclosed under Section 134(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 may be treated as 
‘Nil’, as the Company is exempted under Section 186(11) of the Companies Act, 2013.

 Annual Return

 Annual Return is available at Company’s website at the link https://www.pnbgilts.com/page.php?id=16

 Deposits

 During the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the 
meaning of the provisions of the Non- Banking Financial Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1977 and RBI’s 

 Risk Management

 In terms of RBI guidelines for NBFCs and Primary Dealers, Risk Management Committee of the Board has 
been entrusted with the responsibility by the Board in laying down procedures for risk assessment and 
minimization. The Committee also reviews these procedures periodically to ensure that executive management 

 The Company also has an Asset–Liability Committee (ALCO) of executives of the Company comprising of the 
Managing Director & CEO, Executive Director & CFO and other senior executives of the Company.

 Risk Management Policy is reviewed annually by the Audit Committee and Risk Management Committee and 
on the basis of the recommendation of these Committees, the Board approves the same.

 The Risk Management Committee, IT Strategy Committee and Audit Committee, on periodic basis, oversees all 

adequate risk management infrastructure in place capable of addressing the possible risks. Thus, in the opinion 
of the Company, there are no such risks, which may threaten the existence of the Company.

 Commercial Paper

 The Company has received the highest credit ratings from credit rating agencies – ICRA and CRISL as under –

a.  ‘ICRA A1+’ assigned to Rs. 500 crore Commercial Paper programme of the Company.
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b.  ‘CRISIL A1+’ assigned to Rs. 500 crore (enhanced from Rs. 250 crore from January 30, 2019) Commercial 
Paper Programme of the Company.

 During the year, your Company issued commercial papers and as on March 31, 2020, outstanding value of 
commercial papers of the Company was Rs. 500 crore.

concern status and Company’s operations in future.

 Issue of Shares

 There was no issue of shares during the year neither with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise 
nor to employees of the company.

 Management Discussion and Analysis

and future aspects forms part of this Board’s Report.

 Secretarial Standards

 The Company has complied with all applicable Secretarial Standards.

 Non-applicability of Section 148 of Companies Act, 2013

 The Company is not required to maintain cost records in accordance with Section 148 of the Companies Act 
2013.

4. AUDITORS, INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

 Statutory Auditor

 The Comptroller and Auditor General of India had appointed M/s Rasool Singhal & Co., Chartered Accountants 

The report of the auditor is self-explanatory and does not call for any further comments. Pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditor of the Company has not reported any 

adverse remark.

 Secretarial Auditor

 The Board had appointed M/s Pranav Kumar & Associates, Company Secretaries, to conduct the Secretarial 

annexed as Annexure E to this Report. The Report of the Secretarial Auditor forming part of the Annual Report 

Auditor’s Report is self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further comments.

 Internal control systems and their adequacy

business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection 
of frauds etc. The Company’s internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its business and the 
size and complexity of its operations. These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard 

safeguarding assets from unauthorized use, executing transactions with proper authorization and ensuring 

for approving transactions/contracts including expenditure. Processes for formulating and reviewing annual and 
long term business plans have been laid down. M/s Rasool Singhal & Co, the statutory auditor of the Company 
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 As a part of this control system, your Board appoints Internal Auditor and other auditors as well. Accordingly, 

appointed M/s Lodha & Co. as the Internal Auditor of the Company. The scope of Internal Audit included 
audit of treasury transactions on a monthly basis and reporting to the Audit Committee of the Board that the 
company has operated within the limits of various risk parameters laid down by the Board, Reserve Bank of 

transactions on monthly basis and key business processes, including IT systems of the Company, on quarterly 
basis. All the reports of the Internal Auditor were submitted to the Audit Committee. Timeliness of submission 
of all the periodic statutory returns/forms etc. to regulatory bodies was also checked by the Internal Auditor. 
The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control environment 
and monitors the implementation of audit recommendations, including those relating to strengthening of the 
Company’s risk management policies and systems.

5.  DETAILS  OF  CONSERVATION  OF  ENERGY,  TECHNOLOGY  ABSORPTION,  FOREIGN  EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

company, hence the particulars required to be disclosed with respect to conservation of energy and technology 
absorption in terms of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder are not 
applicable/ Nil.

far as possible. Some of these measures include switching off lights and computer systems when not in use, 
creating awareness among employees about the necessity of energy conservation etc. Your Company has 
installed the integrated treasury management software and RBI’s Negotiated Dealing System with the help of 
The Institute for Development and Research in Banking Technology (IDRBT) and reputed IT companies. The 
Company recognizes the growing importance of Information Technology in the emerging business environment. 
The Company has also implemented Business Continuity Plan (BCP) and Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) with 
the help of IDRBT (consultants for implementation of BCP and DRP) to identify and reduce risk exposures and 
proactively manage any contingencies.

 Your Company has neither used nor earned any foreign exchange during the year under review.

 Acknowledgements
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On behalf of Board of Directors

        Sd/-
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Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 08322541

Sd/-
(Tejendra Mohan Bhasin)
Independent Director

DIN: 03091429

Date :  September 4, 2020

Place: New Delhi
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Annexure A 

REMUNERATION POLICY  

creation for shareholders. The Remuneration Policy is applicable to Independent Directors, Non-Independent 

Regulations, increment policy etc. of the Company is a part of this Policy.

Purpose and Basic Principles

The Remuneration Policy seeks to ensure adequate remuneration in recognition of their dedication and the 
responsibility assumed, and in accordance with the remuneration paid in the market by peer group, taking into 
account the long term interest of all the shareholders. The guiding principle is to offer remuneration systems that 
make it possible to attract, retain, and motivate the most outstanding professionals in order to enable the Company 
to attain its strategic objectives within the increasingly competitive environment in which the Company operate.

The Remuneration Policy seeks to:

Ensure that the remuneration, in terms of structure and total amount, is in line with best practices, as well as 

Establish the remuneration, in accordance with objective standards, based on individual performance and on the 
achievement of the business objectives of the Company.

The foregoing should be understood to be without prejudice to the possibility of considering other objectives, 
especially in the area of corporate governance and corporate social responsibility.

Foster and encourage the attainment of the strategic goals of the Company through the inclusion of long-term 
incentives, strengthening continuity in the competitive development of the company, of its directors, and of its 
management team, and generating a motivating effect that acts as a driving force to ensure the loyalty and 
retention of the best professionals.

Set appropriate limits to any short-term or long-term variable remuneration, and establish suitable mechanisms 
to reconsider the implementation and payment of any deferred variable remuneration when a reformulation 
occurs that has a negative effect on the Company’s annual accounts, including the potential total or partial 
cancellation of the payment of deferred variable remuneration if there is a correction of the annual accounts 
upon which such remuneration was based.

Competent Bodies

The Board of Directors, at the proposal of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, is the body with authority 
to determine the remuneration of directors within the overall limit established in the Act.

Limit on Directors’ Remuneration

Pursuant to the provisions of the Act and rules made thereunder, the Directors’ Remuneration shall be within the 

of the Act and Rules made thereunder. The terms of service, including remuneration matters, of Managing Director, 
Executive Director, other Key Managerial Personnel, senior management and other employees shall be subject 
to Service Regulations of the Company, which is being reviewed by Nomination & Remuneration Committee and 
approved by the Board on annual basis.

Structure of remuneration of Managing Director, Executive Director, Key Managerial Personnel and other 
employees

The remuneration that Managing Director and Executive Director etc. are entitled to receive for the performance of 
executive duties at the Company is structured as follows:
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(a) Fixed Remuneration/CTC –

 (i) Fixed Remuneration/CTC of Managing Director and Executive Director -

   This portion of the remuneration shall be in line with the remuneration paid in the market by competing 

allowances. The Nomination & Remuneration Committee recommends suitable package to the Board for 

Act, 2013.

 (ii) Fixed Remuneration/CTC of Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Management and other employees -

   Remuneration of employees largely consists of salary, perquisites, and allowances. The detailed components 

(b) Variable Remuneration

  In order to strengthen employees’ commitment to the Company, to retain and promote a better performance 
of their duties, the Company gives a performance linked incentive. This variable remuneration shall be tied, 

of the Company. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will assess the achievement of Company’s 

this regard. The proposal thereof shall be submitted to the Board of Directors for approval on annual basis. While 

earned by the Company for the year.

 Structure of remuneration of Non-Executive / Independent Directors

  Remuneration of Non-Executive/ Independent Directors is subject to the provisions of Section 197 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 & Rules made thereof and Articles of Association of the Company. The Board approves the 
sitting fee payable to Non-executive/Independent Directors. In addition, the Company also pays out of pocket 
expenses incurred by them for attending such meetings.

 Principle of Full Transparency

  The Board of Directors assumes the commitment to enforce the principle of the fullest transparency of all the 
items of remuneration received by all directors, providing clear and adequate information as much in advance 
as required and in line with the good governance practices generally recognised in Indian markets in the area of 
director remuneration.

  For such purpose, the Board of Directors establishes the Remuneration Policy and ensures the transparency of 
director remuneration by including in the Company’s report a detailed breakup, according to positions and status, 
of all remuneration received by the directors, whether as such, in their capacity as executives, if applicable, or 
in any other capacity. The Company’s Remuneration Policy shall be published suitably in the Directors’ report or 
Annual Report.

 General

  Any or all provisions of this Policy would be subject to revision/amendment in accordance with the guidelines etc. 
on the subject as may be issued by Government/regulatory bodies etc., from time to time.
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 ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA OF DIRECTORS AND POLICY ON BOARD DIVERSITY

 Introduction

  In pursuance of the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder read 
with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘the Listing Regulations’) 
and RBI guidelines for NBFCs, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board (the “Committee”) 

the qualities and characteristics desired for the Board as a whole and for Board members individually.

forth herein and recommend to the Board for their appointment accordingly.

ample experience and a proven record of professional success, leadership and the highest level of personal and 
professional ethics, integrity and values.

  In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Committee takes into account many factors, 
including general understanding of the Company’s business dynamics, global business and social perspective, 
educational and professional background and personal achievements. 

  Key Board Expertise/Skills/Competencies which can be taken into consideration by the Committee while 
nominating candidates to serve on Board shall be as under -

Professional Competencies

Business and Management 
experience

Experience in, or is able to demonstrate knowledge or expertise in, sound 
management and operational business processes and practices in the private or 
public sector. 

Legal, technology etc. Exposure in handling regulatory and technology matters or providing legal/regulatory/
technology advice and guidance to an organization.

Risk Management Knowledge and experience in enterprise risk management in the relevant industry 
and understanding of the Board’s role in the oversight of risk management principles.

Strategic Planning Ability to generate and apply strategic thinking in regard to the unique business 
insights and opportunities of relevance to the organization.

Board service and 
Governance of roles and responsibilities of Board of a Company and responsibilities as Director. 

Experience in developing strategies or handling matter like development of talent 
and retention, succession planning and driving change and long term growth etc. 

Finance

application of such accounting principles in connection with the accounting for the 
company.

Banking Experience in Credit/Treasury/ International Business etc. in banking industry.  

Capital market Strategic and operational understanding of the working of capital markets in order to 
provide oversight to management strategies. 
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Debt Market Experience in driving Fixed Income, capital or any other market as may be permitted 
by Reserve Bank of India, from time to time, with an understanding of diverse 
business environments, economic conditions, regulatory frameworks and a broad 
perspective on Indian and/or Global market opportunities.

Diversity (gender, ethnic 
or others)

Representation of gender, ethnic, geographic, cultural or other perspectives that 
expand the Board’s understanding of the needs and viewpoints of clients, employees, 
governments and other stakeholders.

Leadership Ability to inspire, motivate and offer direction and leadership to others. 

Analytical and visionary Ability and aptitude of showcasing analytical and visionary skills towards the 
organization in the long term. Ability to work as part of a team, and demonstrate the 
passion and time to make a genuine and active contribution to the Board.

Commitment Commitment to the organization, its Board, its culture, values and people.

effectively. They must have the aptitude to critically evaluate management’s working as part of a team in an 
environment of collegiality and trust.

  The Committee evaluates each individual with the object of having a group that best enables the success of 
the Company’s business.

the Company i.e.:

  Section 196 and Schedule V (Part-I) (for the appointment of Managing Director, Whole Time Director and Manager), 
Section 149 (for appointment of Independent Directors) and any other applicable provisions of Companies Act, 
2013 and Rules made thereunder.

What constitutes independence for Directors

  For a Director to be considered Independent, the Board determines that the Director does not have any 
direct or indirect material pecuniary relationship with the company. The Board has adopted guidelines to 
determine independence, which are in line with the applicable legal requirements as stated in Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder read with Listing Regulations. Apart from the provisions 
laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, the Board also considers all relevant facts and 
circumstances, not merely from the standpoint of the Directors but also from that of persons or organizations with 

  The criteria of independence is provided in the Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations. 

the requirements of an Independent Director as per the Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations.

 Succession Planning

  A planned programme of recruitment and retirement amongst Board members and senior management is 
of 

  It is an important part of the Board’s work to ensure that there is adequate management development and succession 
planning particularly at the top levels. Succession planning also involves an assessment of the challenges 
and opportunities facing the company, and an evaluation of the skills and expertise that will be needed in the 
future. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is to provide support on this. Both executive and non-
executive requirements shall be considered. The Committee shall satisfy itself that processes and plans are in 
place for orderly succession for appointments to the Board and to senior management to maintain an appropriate 
balance of skills on the Board and in the company.
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  In addition, the annual appraisal assessment process for all the employees including the senior management 
personnel has succession planning and employee progression as one of the key attributes.

superiors to identify the succession path and suggest the training and development of skill necessary for 
the company executives or suggest new recruitment wherever gaps exist.

 Board Diversity

  In accordance with the requirements of the Listing Regulations, atleast half of the Board shall comprise of 
Independent Directors. Further, atleast one woman director should also be there. The Committee, along with 
the Board, reviews on an annual basis, appropriate skills, characteristics and experience required from the 
Board as a whole and its individual members. The objective is to have a Board with diverse background 
and experience in business, government, academics, technology and in the areas that are relevant for the 
Company’s operations.

(more of non-executive).

  The Board of the Company always strives to maintain equilibrium between the Independent Directors and 
Non- Independent Directors.

General

  Any or all provisions of this Policy would be subject to revision/amendment in accordance with the guidelines etc. 
on the subject as may be issued by Government/regulatory bodies etc., from time to time.

On behalf of Board of Directors

        Sd/-
(Vikas Goel)
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 08322541

Sd/-
(Tejendra Mohan Bhasin)
Independent Director

DIN: 03091429

Date :  September 4, 2020

Place: New Delhi
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Annexure B

REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES/ INITIATIVES

[Pursuant to Section 135 of the Act & Rules made thereunder]

1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of the projects or programmes proposed to 
be undertaken and reference to the web-link to the CSR Policy and projects or programmes

 As a Responsible Corporate Citizen, PNB Gilts Ltd. endeavours to ensure an increased commitment at 
all levels in the organization to operate its business in an economically and socially sustainable manner, 
while recognising the interests of all its stakeholders and directly or indirectly taking up programmes 

Policy in compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, which outlines its CSR objectives 
and the manner in which it will be implemented. The CSR Policy of the Company is available at the link  
https://www.pnbgilts.com/data/governence/1589174288.pdf

 During the year 2019-20, the Company took efforts and extended its support in in following areas/social issues:  

 a.   Ensuring promotion of education through installation of sports infrastructure for children including the 
underprivileged and below the poverty line.

be primarily used in Neuro, Gastro and Ortho Oncology departments of the hospital.

with usage of earth work, civil work, masonry, creation of drainage systems, paving, bio-swale networking etc. 

2. Composition of the CSR Committee

 The composition of the CSR Committee during FY 2019-20 was as under –

Name of Director Position

Sh. S. K. Kalra1 Chairman

Sh. P. P. Pareek1 Chairman

Dr. Kamal Gupta2 Member
3 Member

Dr. T. M. Bhasin4 Member

Sh. Vikas Goel Member

 1  The Committee was reconstituted w.e.f. November 9, 2019. Till November 8, 2019, Sh. S. K. Kalra acted as Chairman of 
the Committee and w.e.f. November 9, 2019, Sh. P. P. Pareek, who was earlier a Member of the Committee,  appointed as 
the Chairman.  

 2   Relinquished the position of Independent Director and consequently ceased to be a member of the Committee w.e.f. June 
28, 2019.

 3  Inducted as Member of Committee w.e.f. June 28, 2019.
 4  Inducted as Member of Committee w.e.f. November 9, 2019.

` 11899.08 lacs

4. Prescribed CSR expenditure (2 per cent of amount) – ` 237.99 lacs

`  237.99 lacs
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 (b) Amount un-spent, if any – Nil

Sr.
No.

CSR project/ 
activity 

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered

Projects/ 
Programmes
1. Local 
area/ others

2. Specify  
the state 
and district 
where project/ 
programme 
was 
undertaken

Amount 
outlay 
(budget) 
project/ 
programme 
wise

Amount 
spent on 
the project/ 
programme 
Sub-heads: 

1.Direct 
expenditure 
on project/ 
programme

2. Overheads:

Cumulative 
expenditure 
up to the 
reporting 
period

Amount spent: 
Direct/ through 
implementing 
agency

1 PM Cares  Fund - - ` 175.56 lacs ` 175.56 
lacs (Direct)

` 175.56 lacs Direct

2 Project for Supply, 
installation and 
commissioning 
infrastructure in St. 
Xavier's Sr. Sec. 
School, Delhi

Promotion of 
education

Delhi ` 39.00 lacs ` 23.08 lacs 
(Direct)

` 23.08 lacs Implementing 
Agency - Delhi 
Xavier’s 85 
Charitable Trust

3 Project for Supply, 
installation and 
commissioning  
of operating 
micro scope in 

Promotion  of 
health care 
including 
preventive 
health care 

Jaipur 
(Rajasthan) 

` 18.50 lacs ` 18.50 lacs 
(Direct)

` 18.50 lacs Implementing 
Agency - 
Bhagwan 
Mahaveer 

& Research 
Centre

4 Project for eco 
restoration 
of waterbody 
and habitat 
conservation 
of watershed, 
Sikanderpur 
Village, 
Gurugram

Environment 
Sustainability

Gurugram ` 45.77 lacs ` 20.85 lacs ` 20.85 lacs Implementing 
Agency – I Am 
Gurgaon

 Details of Implementing Agencies: During the year 2019-20, the Company has carried out its CSR initiatives 

of 1985 student batch of St. Xavier’s School for promotion of education & learning in all its branches and 
empowerment of underprivileged children,  and widow women through education.

existence in the year 1997 as a cancer specialty hospital offering cancer prevention, treatment, education 

Radiation Oncology, Radiology, Pathology, and Blood Bank. The hospital aims to serve patients not only 
within Rajasthan but also from neighboring states who earlier had no alternative other than to go to metro 
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under BPL category for free up to the extent of 25% but also offer subsidized cost of treatment for the patients 
belonging to the weaker strata.

habitat that has been lost to rampant urbanization. They work with the government, other NGOs, the citizens 
and corporates to create impact. The Aravali Biodiversity Park, Chakkarpur Wazirabad Bundh, Badshahpur 

projects undertaken by them in collaboration with MCG and Forest department.

any part thereof, reasons for not spending the amount in its Board Report – Not Applicable.

7. Responsibility Statement by the CSR Committee -

monitors the implementation of the CSR projects and activities in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of 
the Company.

Date :  September 4, 2020
                                     Sd/-

Place : New Delhi  Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 08322541 DIN: 00615296
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Annexure C

Form AOC-2

 Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to 
in Sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under 
third proviso thereto:

which were not at arm’s length basis :

1 Name(s) of the 
related party 
and nature of 
relationship

Punjab 
National Bank 
(PNB), parent 
bank

Punjab National 
Bank (PNB), 
parent bank

Punjab National 
Bank (PNB), 
parent bank

Punjab National 
Bank (PNB), 
parent bank

a   Madhya Bihar Gramin Bank

d.   Punjab Gramin Bank

f.   PNB Employees Pension Fund

g.  PNB Employees PF Fund

i.   PNB Employees Gratuity Fund

    (a) to (e) above are Associates 
of Punjab National Bank (PNB), 
parent bank

    (f) to (h) above are post 

parent bank

2 Nature of 
contracts/ 
arrangements/ 
transactions

Availing or 
rendering of 
any services

Leasing of 
property 
(residential 
premises)

Leasing of 
property 
(business 
premises)

Leasing of 
property (business 
premises)

Availing or rendering of any 
services

3 Duration of 
the contracts / 
arrangements/ 
transactions

Mutual 
arrangement 
on continuous 
basis for 
holding various 
meetings like 
meetings of 
Board and its 
Committees, 
general 
meetings and 
other meetings 
of
the company at 
the premises of 
PNB and vice-
a-versa.

Residential Flats 
of the Company 
to

as per their 
entitlement in 
PNB for a period
of 11 months, 
with two/more 
extensions.

Business 
premises from 
PNB taken 
on lease / 
rent sharing 
arrangement -
Mumbai Branch 

for 5 years is 
effective from 
September,
2016, renewable 
after 
years.

Business 
premises from 
PNB taken 
on lease / 
rent sharing 
arrangement –
Chennai Branch 

premises has 
been provided 
under a mutual 
rent sharing 
arrangement by 
PNB since
15.05.12 on the 
basis of area 
occupied.
The said premises 
has been taken 
by PNB on lease 
from Tamil Nadu 
Khadi and Village 
Industries Board, 
Tamil Nadu (State 
Govt. Department) 
for a period of 5 
years (subject to 
continuation of 

place), extendable 
for a period as 
may be decided 
between the said 
Board and PNB. 

The arrangement was till 
30.04.2019.
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4  
the contracts or 
arrangements 
or transaction 
including the 

No 
transaction 
value is there 
as these 
transactions 
are being 
done in view 

subsidiary 
relationship
and on mutual 
understanding.

premises: 

per the lease 
present is
` 
plus taxes

present is  
` 
plus taxes.

subject to 
enhancement 
as may be done 
by abovesaid 
State Govt 

concessional basis depending 

parent bank  till 30.04.2019. 

business.
Normal Charges are as under –
a.  The Constituent Deals with 

Third Party
      i.e. the counterparty is other 

`
plus applicable taxes per deal 
plus CCIL charges on actual 
basis.

b.  For collection and remittance 

-  `

maturity proceeds

NIL

Accountants – Actual.
e.  CSGL account’s Annual 

Maintenance Charges - 
`
applicable taxes

Demat to CSGL and vice versa 
– `
applicable charges.

` 500 
per transaction

5

into such 
contracts or 
arrangements
or transactions

The Company 
and parent 
bank are 
entering 
into these 
transactions 
due to its 
parent- 
subsidiary  
relationship.

The Company 
and parent 
bank are 
entering 
into these 
transactions 
due to its 
parent- 
subsidiary 
relationship. 
As a matter 

Company 
does not enter 
such property 
related 
transactions 
with outside 
parties. 
Further, the 
Company will 
also be able 
to get their 

vacated at any 
time they need 

sale.

The Company 
and parent 
bank are 
entering 
into these 
transactions 
due to its 
parent- 
subsidiary 
relationship.

The Company 
and parent bank 
are entering 
into these 
transactions due 
to its parent- 
subsidiary 
relationship.

into these transactions as they 
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6  
approval by the 

03.08.2015 29.01.2015 26.10.2016 30.07.2016 18.08.2018 and 17.11.2018

7 Amount paid 
as advances, 

Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

8 Date on which 
the special 
resolution was 
passed
in general 
meeting as 
required under 

 
the Act

Not 
required as 
the same 
is below 
the limit 

proviso to 

the Companies 
Act, 2013 and 

thereunder

Not required 
as the same 
is below the 

proviso to 

the Companies 
Act, 2013 and 

thereunder

Not required 
as the same 
is below 
the limit 

proviso to 
Section 188 

the Companies 
Act, 2013 and 

thereunder

Not required 
as the same 
is below the 

proviso
to Section 

Companies 
Act, 2013 and 

thereunder

Not required as the same is 

Companies Act, 2013 and 

On behalf of Board of Directors

        Sd/-
(Vikas Goel)
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 08322541

Sd/-
(Tejendra Mohan Bhasin)
Independent Director

DIN: 03091429

Date :  September 4, 2020

Place: New Delhi

2.  Details of material contract or arrangement or transactions at arm's length basis-

 
March 31, 2020
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Annexure D 

Particulars of Employees

Pursuant to the Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, 
the information is furnished below:

a. The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the company for the 

(` in lacs)

Sl. No Name of Director Director’s 
Remuneration

Employee Median 
Remuneration

Ratio (No. of times)

1 Sh. Sunil Mehta* 1.50 15.53 0.10

2 Dr. Kamal Gupta* 1.55 0.10

3 Sh. P. P. Pareek 5.70 0.37

4 Sh. S. K. Kalra 9.50 0.61

5 6.00 0.39

6 Dr. T. M. Bhasin** 2.80 0.18

7 Sh. V. K. Srivastava** 1.45 0.09

8 Sh. Vikas Goel 100.47*** 6.47

9 Smt. Sunita Gupta 63.21*** 4.07

 *  Sitting fee paid to Sh. Sunil Mehta is upto September 30, 2019 and for Dr. Kamal Gupta, same is upto June 28, 2019.

 ** Sitting fee paid to Smt. Relan is w.e.f. June 28, 2019 and for Dr. Bhasin and Sh. Srivastava, same is w.e.f. July 30, 2019.

 *** Above remuneration includes variable pay (Performance linked incentive) which is paid based on performance of the company 

approved by the Board. During 2019-20, a variable pay of ` 4.18 lacs (proportionate amount for the period from January 14, 2019 to 

March 31, 2019) and ` 9.28 lacs (Prev. Year: ` Nil and ` 6.56 lacs) was paid to the Managing Director & CEO and Executive Director 

and gratuity which are provided based on actuarial valuation for the company as a whole, is also available.

 Notes: 1.    Directors at Sl. No. 1 to 7 are/were Non-Executive Directors and only sitting fee has been paid. 
Sitting fee of promoter directors at Sl. No. 1 and 7 has been paid to Punjab National Bank, who is the 
promoter of the Company, as per the instructions received from said bank/directors. 

       2.  Out of pocket expenses incurred by them for attending the meetings and service tax not taken into 
account.

Sl. No Name of Director and Key Managerial Personnel % increase in remuneration

1 Sh. Sunil Mehta* NA

2 Dr. Kamal Gupta* NA

3 Sh. P. P. Pareek* 80.95

4 Sh. S. K. Kalra* NA

5 NA

6 Dr. T. M. Bhasin* NA
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7 Sh. V.K. Srivastava* NA

8 Sh. Vikas Goel NA

9 Smt. Sunita Gupta 36.70

10 Smt. Monika Kochar 35.92

  *  received only sitting fee during the year.  Sitting fee of promoter Director at Sl. No. 1 and 7 above has been paid to PNB as 
per instructions.

 Note: Above remuneration includes variable pay (Performance linked incentive) which is paid based on performance of the 

Committee and approved by the Board. During  2019-20, a variable pay of ` 4.18 lacs (proportionate amount for the serving 
period from January 14, 2019 to March 31, 2019) and ` 9.28 lacs and ` 2.14 lacs (Prev. Year: ` Nil, ` 6.56 lacs and ` 1.40 
lacs) was paid to the Managing Director & CEO, Executive Director & CFO and Company Secretary, at Sl. No. 8, 9 and 10 

actuarial valuation for the company as a whole, is also available.

 During 2019-20, Sh. S. K. Dubey, Ex-Managing Director, was also paid an amount of ̀  9.19 lacs towards Performance Linked 
Variable Pay (PLVP) pertaining the period from April 1, 2018 to January 31, 2019.

 Except above, there was no increase in remuneration of other Directors as either they were not directors in FY 2018-19 or 
were appointed during FY 2019-20. Further with respect to Non-Executive Directors (Sl. No. 3), increase in remuneration is 
on account of attending a higher number of Board/Committee meetings during FY 2019-20 as opposed to FY 2018-19.

d.   Total number of employees of the Company as on March 31, 2020 were 40 (including 2 employees on deputation 
from parent bank). The Company has maintained peaceful and harmonious relations with all its employees.

e.   Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel 
in FY 2019-20 was 39.79 per cent whereas the increase in managerial remuneration was 19.21 per cent in 
this period. This was based on the recommendations of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, based on 
industry benchmarks and the respective employee’s performance and contribution. The Company’s remuneration 
philosophy is to ensure that it is competitive in the Primary Dealer (PD) industry in which it operates, for attracting 
and retaining the best talent. Further, the remuneration includes variable pay (Performance linked incentive) 

basis. The remuneration is in line with the PD industry benchmarks.

On behalf of Board of Directors

        Sd/-
(Vikas Goel)
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 08322541

Sd/-
(Tejendra Mohan Bhasin)
Independent Director

DIN: 03091429

Date :  September 4, 2020

Place: New Delhi
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Annexure E
Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

To, 
The Members, 
PNB Gilts Limited, 
5, Sansad Marg, New Delhi-110001 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to 
good corporate practices by PNB Gilts Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”) for the audit period covering the 

basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

representation made by the Management, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
period under consideration complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has 
proper Board processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereinafter: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (“SCRA”) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the regulations and bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent of 
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings - Not applicable to 
the Company during the audit period; 

(v)  The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 
1992 (“SEBI Act”):- 

 (a)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

 (b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 

 (c)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2018 – Not applicable to the Company during the audit period; 

applicable to the Company during the audit period; 

 (e)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,  
2008 – Not applicable to the Company during the audit period; 

 (f)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 
1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client – Not applicable to the Company during the audit 
period; 

 (g)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 - Not applicable 
to the Company during the audit period; 

 (h)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buy back of Securities) Regulations, 1998 – Not applicable to 
the Company during audit period 
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 (i)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015; 

 (j)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Intermediaries) Regulations, 2008; and 

 (k)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Stock Brokers and Sub brokers) Regulations, 1992. 

 (a) Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and guidelines made there under; and 

 (b)  Master Directions/ Guidelines issued for NBFCs/Systemically Important Non-deposit taking Non-Banking 
Financial Companies (NBFC-ND-SI) and Primary Dealers by the Reserve Bank of India from time to time. 

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings 
of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above and other applicable Acts. 

We further report that

Scheme 2020 introduced by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, we have not formed any adverse opinion with respect to 

We further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and also 
on the review of the internal compliance reports taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company, in our 
opinion, adequate systems and processes exist in the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with provisions 

During the audit period, there were no major events which had bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the 
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines etc. 

We further report that:- 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-executive 
Directors, Independent Directors and Woman Director. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that 
took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings; agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance other than those held at shorter notice, and a system exists for seeking 

participation at the meeting. 

All decisions at the Board Meetings and Committee Meetings were carried out with requisite majority as recorded in 
the minutes of the Meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee(s) of the Board as the case may be. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

For Pranav Kumar & Associates  
Company Secretaries 

Sd/-
Date: July 31, 2020  (Arpita Saxena) 
Place: Ghaziabad  Partner 
 Mem. No : A23822: CP No.: 11962 

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure 1 and forms an  integral part of 
this report. 
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Annexure -1
 

To,

The Members, 
PNB Gilts Limited, 
5, Sansad Marg, New Delhi-110001 

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1.   Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to 
express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2.   We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 

a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

company. 

4.   Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and 
regulations and happening of events etc. 

5.   The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

For Pranav Kumar & Associates  
Company Secretaries 

Sd/-
Date: July 31, 2020  (Arpita Saxena) 
Place: Ghaziabad  Partner 
 Mem. No : A23822: CP No.: 11962 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
MACROECONOMIC REVIEW: FY 2019-20

Domestic Overview 

The Indian economy faced unprecedented headwinds 

especially in the second half of the year. The real 
Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth slowed down 
to an eleven year low of 4.2 per cent while the nominal 
GDP growth stood at a multi decade low of 7.2 per 
cent. Growth in Gross Value Added (GVA) plunged to 
almost a two decade low of 3.9 per cent in FY 2019-20 
as against 6 per cent growth witnessed in FY 2018-19. 
The sharp slowdown in economic activity was triggered 
due to secular deterioration in private consumption 
and investment which have traditionally been the key 
drivers of the Indian economic growth. During FY 2019-
20, Private Final Consumption Expenditure (PFCE) (on 
constant prices) grew by only 5.3 per cent as against 7.2 
per cent in FY2018-19. The deceleration in GDP growth 
has primarily been driven by Gross Fixed Capital Formation (GFCF) and exports, which recorded a sharp weakening 
to a y-o-y contraction of 2.8 per cent and 3.6 per cent, respectively, from the healthy 9.8 per cent and 12.3 per cent 
expansion in the previous year. In order to offset the sharp decline in private activity, the government expenditure 
(GFCE) witnessed a healthy expansion of 11.8 per cent in FY 2019-20 as against 10.1 per cent in FY 2018-19. 
Sector wise annual trends show that manufacturing and construction sectors fared poorly, posting growth of 0.03 
per cent and 1.3 per cent respectively during the year, while agriculture and mining activity (4 per cent and 3.1 per 
cent respectively) threw a positive surprise registering higher growth rates compared to previous year, making up 
for the sharp decline in growth in other sectors. The outlook for economic growth remains downbeat as the Covid 
crisis manifests into a full blown economic crisis, with demand and supply chains being disrupted simultaneously. 
Any recovery in economic activity will be contingent on continued government support, panning of the Covid 
epidemiological curve and availability of the vaccine.

target in December 2019 and peaked in January 2020, and subsequently eased downwards on account of decline 

ambiguous with a sharp decline in crude oil prices, healthy Kharif sowing pattern and subdued consumer demand 
likely to keep prices in check while any supply side disruptions may exert upward pressure on prices. 

Forex Market

Since April 2019, the INR traded with a depreciating bias, dipping to a low of `

off in the equity markets which severely impacted portfolio investments. Consequently, EME currencies, including 
the INR, weakened sharply in March, with the latter depreciating to an intraday low of Rs.76.24 on March 24, 2020.  

Current Account Balance
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aversion on fears of global recession in the wake of COVID-19 pandemic, foreign portfolio investors (FPIs) turned 

2.0 billion a year ago. Net International Investment Position (IIP), i.e., the difference between a country’s external 

billion over the level at end-March 2019.

government deteriorated considerably mainly due to 
a decline in gross revenue under corporation tax, on 
account of mid-year cut in tax rates to give a boost to the 

of GDP for FY 2019-20 (RE) from the budgeted 3.3 per 
cent, due to a shortfall in tax revenue and disinvestment 

settling at 4.6 per cent of GDP as economic activity came 
to a halt due to Covid induced lockdown measures which 
severely dented economic growth in the last quarter 

revised target of Rs. 7.67 lakh crore. 

Government Borrowings

The gross borrowing of the Centre during the FY 

as compared to Rs. 5,71,000 crore in FY 2018-19. 

kept the borrowing program unchanged for the year 
from the budgeted borrowings. In addition to this, state 
governments also raised funds to the tune of Rs. 6,34,521 
crore through market borrowings as against Rs. 4,78,323 
crore during the previous year. As part of active debt 
consolidation, 13 tranches of switch operations worth 
Rs. 1,64,232 crore were carried out during the year with 
the objective of managing redemption and enhancing 
liquidity of government securities. This partly contributed 
to the weighted average maturity of outstanding stock of 
G-secs increasing to 10.54 years as on March 31, 2020 
from 10.02 years as on September 30, 2019. Furthermore, cash management bills worth Rs. 3,00,000 crore were 
also issued during FY 2019-20 to tide over frequent recourse to ways and means advances/overdrafts in the face of 
negative cash balances with the Reserve Bank. 
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Monetary Policy & Liquidity Management

FY 2019-20 witnessed record monetary easing as 

of the year and later owing to the Covid19 crisis due to 
which economic activity came to a complete halt. During 
the year, RBI slashed the repo rate by 185 bps and the 
reverse repo rate by 200 bps to 4.40 per cent and 4.00 

management operations by the RBI were conducted in 
line with the revised liquidity management framework 
announced on February 6, 2020 and guided by the need 
to ease liquidity constraints in the banking system and 

During the year, systemic liquidity increased mainly on 
account of (i) the Reserve Bank’s forex operations; and (ii) higher spending by the government, including recourse 
to Ways & Means Advances (WMA) and OD. In order to mop up the increasing surplus liquidity, the Reserve 
Bank conducted variable rate reverse repo auctions of various tenors. Moreover, in order to improve monetary 

Operations (LTROs) and Targeted LTROs which cumulatively infused liquidity aggregating Rs. 2,75,000 crore. Infact 

package announced by the government. In view of persistent excess liquidity, the existing Liquidity Adjustment 
Facility (LAF) corridor was widened asymmetrically to 65 bps from 50 bps. This was done to dis-incentivize banks 
from passively parking deposit funds with the RBI and instead deploy for on-lending to productive sectors of the 

to continue to ensure availability of durable liquidity in the system as the Indian economy is likely to go through a 
prolonged period of economic pain.  

Treasury Bill Market

During FY 2019-20, the borrowings through T-Bills (Including CMBs) stood at Rs. 11,97,000 crore as against  Rs. 

in the system and successive reduction in policy rates which kept short term rates low. The cut-off yield on 91 DTB 
eased from 6.23 per cent in the beginning of the year to 4.36 per cent in the end, cut-off yield on 182 DTB declined 
from 6.29 per cent in beginning of the year to 4.97 per cent in the end and the cut-off yield on 364 DTB declined 
from 6.31 per cent in the beginning of the year to 4.94 per cent in the end. Weighted average implicit yield at cut-off 
price on 91 DTB, 182 DTB and 364 DTB during FY 2019-20 stood at 5.43 per cent, 5.59 per cent & 5.64 per cent as 
against 6.60 per cent, 6.83 per cent & 7.02 per cent in the previous year respectively.

Government Dated Securities 

Primary Market 

During FY 2019-20, the gross borrowings through dated issuances stood at Rs. 7,10,000 crore, while net borrowings 
stood at Rs. 4,73,122 crore. The weighted average maturity of issuances stood higher at 16.13 years during  
FY 2019-20 vis-a-vis 14.50 years in the previous year. The weighted average yield of dated securities issued during 

Secondary Market 

The domestic bond markets witnessed a period of boom during FY 2019-20 with the 10 year yield easing by almost 
140 bps from year’s highs. The fall in yields was triggered by successive rate cuts by RBI in its Monetary Policy 
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Meet and persistent growth concerns. During the year 
RBI slashed the Repo rate cumulatively by 185 bps as 
growth impulses weakened substantially due to declining 
private investment and overall consumer demand. During 
the year, real GDP growth declined from 6.1 per cent in 
FY 2018-19 to 4.2 per cent (provisional) in FY 2019-20. 
On a quarterly basis, the economy decelerated for eight 
consecutive periods, with Q4 growth dipping below 5 
per cent mark at 3.1 per cent. The decline in yields was 

uni-directionally to close the quarter at 6.88 per cent after 
peaking at 7.47 per cent in early April. In the second and 
third quarter of the year, market traded with a cautious 

of 4 per cent plus/minus 2 per cent, led RBI to give a pause in the rate cut cycle. RBI, after slashing repo rate by 
110 bps to 5.15 per cent during the year, maintained status quo in the December policy meet, which led to a 10 yr 
yield rising to 6.80 per cent. During December to January 2020, RBI conducted special Open Market Operations 
(OMO) auctions to the tune of Rs. 40,000 crore wherein it swapped medium to long dated securities with short dated 

the economy. G-sec market was enthused because of RBI’s action and the effect on the term structure was seen 

same was quelled after government abstained from announcing any additional borrowings for the year. At the end 

the Covid crisis. RBI slashed the repo rate by 75 bps, Reverse Repo rate by 90 bps & CRR by 1 per cent besides 
announcing a host of regulatory forbearance & massive liquidity infusion measures in order to avoid major setbacks 

closed the year at 6.14 per cent. 

COMPANY PERFORMANCE

Primary Market

In primary market, the Company continued to comply with 
all the regulatory requirements of bidding under Minimum 

During the year, the Company earned an underwriting 
commission of Rs. 1.46 crore as against previous year’s 
commission of Rs. 5.50 crore. In treasury bill auctions, 

against Rs. 4,29,000 crore in the corresponding period 

crore through T-bills as against Rs. 3,21,000 crore 

CMBs aggregating Rs. 3,00,000 crore in FY 2019-20 as 
against Rs. 1,90,000 in FY19. Against these issuances of T-bills and CMBs, Company submitted bids aggregating 

requirement of 40 per cent.
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Secondary Market

During FY 2019-20, total secondary market outright 
turnover stood at Rs. 7,86,685 crore as against 
Rs. 4,21,156 crore in FY 2018-19. The Central 
Government security segment recorded a turnover of 
Rs. 6,57,626 crore followed by SDLs which registered 
a turnover of Rs. 52,412 crore. Treasury bills recorded 
turnover of Rs. 35,402 crore. Company’s total turnover 
ratio (secondary market) stands at 190 times for treasury 
bills and 422 times for government-dated securities as 
on March 31, 2020 against the minimum RBI stipulation 
of 10 times and 5 times respectively. 

Portfolio Size and Composition

Portfolio size and composition is a function of arbitrage opportunities, tradability and risk appetite. During FY 2019-

compared to the last year. Company’s average and maximum holding in Central Dated Securities during FY 2019-20 
stood at Rs. 2809.68 crore (Rs. 893.47 crore in FY 2018-19) and     Rs. 5146.18 crore (Rs. 2736.48 crore in FY 2018-
19). Daily average holding in T-bills during the year stood at Rs. 870.24 crore (Rs. 1833.29 crore  in FY 2018-19)  
whereas the peak holding in T-bills stood at Rs. 2937.94 crore (Rs. 3464.05 crore). 

Liability Mix

During the year, the Company judiciously utilized different 
sources of borrowings viz. Call Money, TREP, Repo, 
LAF, etc. for active fund management. The average 
borrowings from all sources during FY 2019-20 amounted 
to Rs. 9807 crore as against Rs. 6305 crore in FY 2018-
19. During the year, Company raised funds aggregating 
Rs. 750 crore through issuance of Commercial Paper for 

10.44 times against 7.40 times in FY 2018-19, while the 
maximum leverage for the year stood at 12.90 times the 
NOF. The average cost of funds during the year stood 
at 5.28 per cent, lower than 6.40 per cent during the last 
year.

Trading Stance & Financial Performance

During FY 2019-20, market witnessed Indian general election, geopolitical tensions from around the world, corporate 
tax rate cut, announcement of LTROs, rate cuts by Fed and RBI due to Covid-19 crisis and thus it remained exposed 

(` in Crore)

Particulars FY 2019-20 FY 2018-19 (%) change
Net Owned Fund 1002.19 885.66 13.25%

249.81 83.02 203%
186.35 52.86 254.69%

Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 32.47 36.58 10.71%
Debt Equity Ratio (%) 11.20 9.27 20.81%
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During FY 2019-20, the yield on the benchmark 10-year security decreased by 130 basis points to close the year 
at 6.14 per cent. Market remained exposed to intermittent bouts of volatility due to domestic developments such 
as general elections, announcement of LTROs, RBI special OMO auctions as well as uncertainty surrounding the 

political issues remained a cause of concern as it impacted the Crude prices and the on-going Covid-19 crisis 
situation also added to the fall in the yield.

from strategic recalibrations and renewed focus on core activities. During the year, Company scaled up the level 

and also forayed into Debt Capital Market (DCM) Business as arrangers of primary issuances of Corporate Bonds. 
In the prime ranking league table of arrangers, the company entered into the top ten ranks and it aims to break into 

substantially with total turnover doubling to Rs. 53,013 crore in FY 2019-20 from Rs. 24,875 crore in FY 2018-19. 

PBT at Rs. 249.81 crore as on March 31, 2020. The two main sources of Company’s revenues, i.e trading income 

Lower interest rates and surplus liquidity in the system also helped in lowering the borrowing cost of the company 
which improved the net interest margin. During FY 2019-20 trading income stood at Rs. 111.50 crore (Rs. 9.00 crore 
in FY 2018-19) and net interest margin stood at Rs. 247.19 crore (Rs. 90.14 crore in FY 2018-19) respectively. The 
NOF of the company increased to Rs. 1002.19 crore as on March 31, 2020 as against Rs. 885.66 crore as on March 
31, 2019. Return on Net-worth for the FY 2019-20 stands at 19.74 per cent as against 6.11 per cent for FY 2018-19. 

The company is adequately capitalized with capital adequacy ratio of 32.47 per cent as on March 31, 2020, against 

in check throughout the year.

Risk Management

Company maintained a balanced composition of securities with an aim to maximize arbitrage income and also with a 
view to have better trading opportunities. Risk management is a critical element of Company’s trading business. The 

at-Risk (VaR), PVBP limits, sensitivity analysis and cut-loss policies form the core of market risk management system. 

proactive stop loss limit and value-at-risk (VaR) limit. The company also conducts sensitivity analysis of its portfolio 

limits and instrument-wise exposure limits were the primary tools used for managing the credit risk in the business. 
Similarly, well-established systems and procedures provided adequate defense against the operational risk. 

Human Resource Development

healthy and motivating work environment for its employees. Employee skills are constantly upgraded by providing 
training suitable to individual requirements. Besides, in-house lectures and workshops are also conducted on a regular 
basis to stimulate healthy exchange of ideas. The details regarding employees are given in the Board’s Report. Total 
number of employees of the Company as on March 31, 2020 were 40 (including 2 employees on deputation from 
parent bank). The Company has maintained peaceful and harmonious relations with all its employees. There were 
no material developments recently in the PD Industry.

Internal Control Systems

business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, prevention and detection 
of frauds etc. As a part of this control system, our Board appoints Internal Auditor as well. For the year 2019-20, the 
Board appointed M/s Lodha & Co., Chartered Accountants as the Internal Auditor of the Company. The scope of 
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Internal Audit included audit of treasury transactions on a monthly basis and reporting to the Audit Committee of the 
Board that the Company has operated within the limits of various risk parameters laid down by the Board, Reserve 

transactions on a monthly basis and key business processes, including IT systems of the Company on quarterly 
basis. All the reports of the Internal Auditors were submitted to the Audit Committee for necessary action. 

During the year, Company has not taken membership from any regulator.

Corporate Social Responsibility

well as environmental conservation. Company undertook CSR projects through various implementing agencies and 
also contributed Rs. 2.75 crore (Rs. 1.75 crore in FY 2019-20 and Rs. 1.00 crore in FY 2020-21) to PM-CARES Fund 
set up by Government of India for dealing with any kind of emergency or distress situation including the ongoing 
Covid-19 health crisis. 

Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities and Threat Analysis

Strengths and Weaknesses

during previous years. Company’s NOF as on March 31, 2020 stood at Rs. 1002.19 crore. The Company operates 
with substantial Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) with comparatively low operational cost. CAR stood at 32.47 per 

responsible for monitoring, analysis and compliance with the latest IT infrastructure through which prudent analysis 
of portfolio is done on a regular basis. A strong compliance culture prevails across the organization, pursuant to its 

for Company like volatility in earnings because of interest rate movements and lack of diversity in revenue. 

Opportunities and Threats

here seem limited. Also, RBI has maintained its accommodative stance and expectations of RBI support to the 
unprecedentedly huge government borrowing program through OMOs and other measures may keep the market 
sentiments anchored.

On the other hand, GDP is unlikely to pick up easily and return to its pre Covid levels any time soon, even though 
the lockdown is being lifted in phases as the varied sectors such as manufacturing, etc. will take time to fully 

see withdrawal of foreign investors to the advanced economies and thus, this may affect the yields adversely. 
The Company proposes to adopt a cautious approach in trading, with swift entry/exit, explore newer products 
launched in the bond markets for appropriate hedging and trading opportunities and also look for more stable and 
diverse avenues of revenue to maintain consistency in the returns to the stakeholders. 

On behalf of Board of Directors

        Sd/-
(Vikas Goel)
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 08322541

Sd/-
(Tejendra Mohan Bhasin)
Independent Director

DIN: 03091429

Date :  September 4, 2020

Place: New Delhi
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Company’s Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance

and fairness in all areas of operation. Our workforce is committed towards the protection of the interest of 
the stakeholders viz. shareholders, creditors, investors, customers, employees, etc. Our policies consistently 
undergo improvements keeping in mind our goal i.e. maximisation of value of all the stakeholders.

The goal is achieved through:
 Infusion of best expertise in the Board.

 Consistent monitoring and improvement of the human and physical resources.

Committee meetings at regular intervals to keep the Board informed of the recent happenings.

I Board of Directors

 The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by shareholders for overseeing the Company’s overall 
functioning. The Board provides and evaluates the Company’s strategic direction, management policies and their 
effectiveness, and ensures that shareholders’ long term interests are being served. The Board has constituted 
various Committees at Board level namely Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Corporate 
Social Responsibility Committee, Risk Management Committee, Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee, Share 

functional Committees, from time to time, depending on business needs. The Company’s internal guidelines for 
Board and its Committee meetings facilitate the decision making process at its meetings in an informed and 

1 Composition of the Board

 The composition of the Board of Directors is an optimum combination of executive and non- executive directors 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”) on Corporate Governance. As on March 31, 2020, 

Directors including a Woman Independent Director) and two Executive Directors.

 The members of the Board are from diverse background with requisite skills and experience in critical areas like 

from time to time to ensure that it remains aligned with the statutory as well as business requirements. 

 As on March 31, 2020, the composition of the Board was as follows –

 Sh. P. P. Pareek 

Committees like Executive Committee and Examination Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India. Presently, he is Director of Jamuna Dream Estates Pvt. Ltd. and Rajasthan State Mines & Minerals Ltd.

 Sh. S. K. Kalra (DIN: 01952165), Independent Director, is having a rich experience of around 36 years in 

retired from Andhra Bank as Executive Director. Prior to Andhra Bank, he was General Manager, Treasury 
Division of Allahabad Bank. Presently, he is Director in Lakshmi Vilas Bank Limited. 

 Smt. Uma Ajay Relan (DIN: 07087902), Independent Director is having rich experience of around 33 years 
in credit and risk management with Citigroup in multiple geographies, various banking disciplines and diverse 
product groups. Presently, she is director of Bharti Axa Life Insurance Company limited, Bharti Axa General 
Insurance Company Limited and Brightstar Telecommunications India limited.

 Dr. T. M. Bhasin (DIN: 03091429), Independent Director having experience of around 40 years in treasury, 

Commissioner in Central Vigilance Commission of India.  Prior to his appointment as Vigilance Commission in 
the Central Vigilance Commission (CVC) in 2015, Dr. Bhasin served as the Chairman and Managing Director of 
Indian Bank. Presently, he is director of Centrum Capital Limited, IDBI Intech Limited, SBI Cards and Payment 
Services Limited, TMB Associates Private Limited. 
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 Sh. V. K. Srivastava (DIN: 07234326), Non- Executive & Non-Independent Director, is Chief General Manager 

administration, team management operations etc. Presently, he is director in one company Cordex India Private 
Limited. 

 Sh. Vikas Goel 
has worked with three multi-national banks (American Express Bank, Credit Agricole Bank, and First Abu Dhabi 
Bank) in India for around 27 years in leadership roles in establishing and managing Global Market businesses, 

of India.

 Smt. Sunita Gupta* (DIN: 06902258) is the Executive Director and CFO of the Company. She is having vast 
experience in treasury operations. She served as an Economist in PNB for around 17 years and is having an 
experience of 21 years in the Company in various senior capacities.

 Other information regarding the Board as on March 31, 2020 is given below:

Name of the 
Director

Category No. of other Directorships and other 
Committee Memberships/ Chairmanships

1
Directorship in other 

listed entity (Category 
of Directorship)Directorships Committee 

Memberships
Committee 

Chairmanships
Sh. P. P. Pareek Non-Executive, 

Independent
2 1 - -

Sh. S. K. Kalra Non-Executive, 
Independent

1 - - Lakshmi Vilas Bank 
Limited (Independent 
Director)

Relan
Non-Executive, 
Independent

3 3 - -

Dr. Tejendra 
Mohan Bhasin

Non-Executive, 
Independent

4 1 0  Centrum Capital 
Limited (Independent 
Director)

 SBI Cards and 
Payment Services 
Limited (Independent 
Director)

Sh. Vishesh 
Kumar Srivastava 

Non-Executive ,
Non-Independent

1 0 0 -

Sh. Vikas Goel Executive,  
Non-Independent

1 - - -

Smt. Sunita 
Gupta

Executive, 
Non-Independent

- - - -

 1 In terms of Regulation 26 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, only two committees viz. the Audit 
Committee and the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of public limited companies are considered for this purpose.

 As on March 31, 2020, none of the Directors (except Sh. P. P. Pareek, who holds 1,333 shares of the Company) 
holds any shares / convertible instruments of the Company.

 There are no inter-se relationships between the Directors.

 The Company conducts familiarisation programme for Independent Directors with regard to their roles, 
rights, responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, the business 
model of the Company etc. The familiarisation programme alongwith details of the same imparted 
to the Independent Directors during the year are available on the website of the Company at the link  
https://www.pnbgilts.com/data/governence/1576737306.pdf

 *ceased from her position w.e.f September 1, 2020.
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the Company which are currently available with the Board:

Professional Competencies
Business and 
Management 
experience

Experience in, or is able to demonstrate knowledge or expertise in, sound management 
and operational business processes and practices in the private or public sector. 

Legal, technology 
etc.

Exposure in handling regulatory and technology matters or providing legal/regulatory/
technology advice and guidance to an organization.

Risk Management Knowledge and experience in enterprise risk management in the relevant industry and 
understanding of the Board’s role in the oversight of risk management principles.

Strategic Planning Ability to generate and apply strategic thinking in regard to the unique business insights 
and opportunities of relevance to the organization.

Board service and 
Governance roles and responsibilities of Board of a Company and responsibilities as Director. 

Experience in developing strategies or handling matter like development of talent and 
retention, succession planning and driving change and long term growth etc. 

Finance

such accounting principles in connection with the accounting for the company.
Banking Experience in Credit/Treasury/ International Business etc. in banking industry.  
Capital market Strategic and operational understanding of the  working of capital markets in order to 

provide oversight to management strategies. 
Debt Market Experience in driving Fixed Income, capital or any other market as may be permitted 

by Reserve Bank of India, from time to time, with an understanding of diverse business 
environments, economic conditions, regulatory frameworks and a broad perspective on 
Indian and/or Global market opportunities.

Diversity (gender, 
ethinic or others)

Representation of gender, ethnic, geographic, cultural or other perspectives that expand 
the Board’s understanding of the needs and viewpoints of clients, employees, governments 
and other stakeholders.

Leadership Ability to inspire, motivate and offer direction and leadership to others. 
Analytical and 
visionary

Ability and aptitude of showcasing analytical and visionary skills towards the organization 
in the long term. Ability to work as part of a team, and demonstrate the passion and time to 
make a genuine and active contribution to the Board.

Commitment Commitment to the organization, its Board, its culture, values and people.

  
highlighted. .

Sh. P. P. 
Pareek

Sh. S. K. 
Kalra Ajay Relan

Dr. T. M. 
Bhasin

Sh. V. K. 
Srivastava

Sh. Vikas 
Goel

Smt. Sunita 
Gupta

Business and 
Management experience
Legal, technology etc.
Risk Management
Strategic Planning
Board service and 
Governance

Finance
Banking
Capital market 
Debt Market
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Diversity (gender, ethinic 
or others)
Leadership
Analytical & visionary
Commitment

2.  Independent Directors 

 a. Performance Evaluation of Independent Directors: The Company has devised a policy for performance 
evaluation of Independent Directors, Board, Committees and other individual Directors which includes criteria 
for performance evaluation of the Non-Executive Directors and Executive Directors. An indicative list of factors 
on which evaluation was carried out includes participation and contribution by a director, commitment, knowledge 

: In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the Listing 

circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to 
discharge their duties. Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of Directors 

Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they 

the Independent Directors of the Company are registered in Independent Director’s Databank maintained by 
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. A formal letter of appointment to Independent Directors as provided in Act 
has been issued and the draft of the same is disclosed in Investors Relations section on website of the Company 
viz. www.pnbgilts.com.

 c. Resignation by Independent Director during FY 2019-20: Dr. Kamal Gupta (DIN: 00038490), whose tenure 
was upto August 29, 2019 resigned from the directorship of the company w.e.f. June 28, 2019 due to his personal 

above. Necessary declarations have already been submitted with the Stock Exchanges in this regard. Your 

of the Company.

3. Meetings of the Board

 During the year 2019-20, five Board meetings were held on May 27, 2019, June 29, 2019, August 5, 2019, 
November 6, 2019 and February 11, 2020. The gap between any two meetings never exceeded 120 days as 
per the requirements of Regulation 17 (2) of the Listing Regulations.

 Attendance record of the Directors in the above meetings and last AGM is as under:

Name of Director No. of Board Meetings 
attended

Attended last AGM held on 
August 28, 2019

Sh. Sunil Mehta1 3 Yes
Dr. Kamal Gupta2 1 N.A.
Sh. P. P. Pareek 5 Yes
Sh. S. K. Kalra 5 Yes

3 4 No
Dr. T. M. Bhasin4 2 Yes
Sh. V. K. Srivastava5 3 Yes
Sh. Vikas Goel 5 Yes
Smt. Sunita Gupta 5 Yes

 
w.e.f. September 30, 2019.

 2 Resigned as an Independent Director w.e.f.  June 28, 2019.

 3 Appointed as an Independent Director w.e.f. June 28, 2019.
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 4 Appointed as an Independent Director w.e.f. July 30, 2019.

 5 Appointed as a Non-Executive and Non-Independent Director w.e.f. July 30, 2019.

4. Committees of the Board

Audit Committee

 The Audit Committee has been formed in pursuance of the Listing Regulations, Section 177 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and RBI guidelines. The powers, role and terms of reference of the Audit Committee covers the areas 
as contemplated under Regulation 18 read with Part C to Schedule II of the Listing Regulations and Section 
177 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, besides other terms as referred by the Board of Directors.

 

systems, internal audit systems, etc. through discussions with internal/external auditors and management.

 During the year 2019-20, six meetings of the Committee were held on May 27, 2019, June 29, 2019, August 
5, 2019, November 6, 2019, January 18, 2020 and February 11, 2020. The composition and attendance of 
Members is as under:

 attended

Sh. P. P. Pareek Chairman 6
Dr. Kamal Gupta1 Member 1
Sh. S. K. Kalra Member 6

2 Member 5
3 Member 2

 1. Member of the Committee till June 28, 2019.
 2. Member of the Committee w.e.f. June 28, 2019.

 3. Member of the Committee w.e.f. November 09, 2019.

 Ms. Monika Kochar, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

 All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the year were accepted by the Board.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

or part of senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down by the Board, to carry out evaluation of 
every Director’s performance, to recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees and Board Diversity etc. The powers, role and terms of reference 
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee covers the areas as contemplated under Regulation 19 read 
with Part D to Schedule II of the Listing Regulations, Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and RBI’s directions, 
besides other terms as referred by the Board of Directors. The Company has “Directors’ Fit and Proper Policy” 

continuing basis, in line with the regulatory framework issued by RBI. Pursuant to the terms of reference, the 
said Committee deals with matter of the appointment / reappointment of Directors and their remuneration etc. 
and submits its recommendations to the Board for approval. 

 During the year 2019-20, three Committee meetings were held on May 27, 2019, June 29, 2019 and February 11, 
2020. The composition of Committee and attendance of the Members is as under:
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 attended

Dr. Kamal Gupta1 Chairman 1

Sh. P. P. Pareek2 Chairman 3
Sh. S. K. Kalra Member 3

3 Member 2
 1. Member & Chairman of the Committee till June 28, 2019.

 2. Chairman of the Committee w.e.f. June 28, 2019. Prior to this, he was Member of the Committee.
 3. Member of the Committee w.e.f. June 28, 2019. 

 Ms. Monika Kochar, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

 The details relating to remuneration of Directors and disclosure regarding Remuneration Policy, as required under 
Listing Regulations have been given under a separate section, viz. ‘Directors’ Remuneration’ in this report.

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee

 The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee oversees, inter-alia, redressal of stakeholders’ grievances. During the 
year 2019-20, four meetings of the Committee were held on May 27, 2019, August 5, 2019, November 6, 2019 
and January 18, 2020

 The composition of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee and the attendance of the Members is as under: 

Names of Director Position held in 
 the Committee

No. of Committee Meetings 
attended

Sh. S. K. Kalra1 Chairman 1

2 Chairperson 1

Sh. P. P. Pareek3 Chairman 4

Sh. Vikas Goel Member 4

Smt. Sunita Gupta Member 4

 1. Member & Chairman of the Committee till June 28, 2019.

 2. Inducted as Member & Chairperson of the Committee  w.e.f.  November 09, 2019.

of the Committee. 

 The Company attends to investor grievances/correspondence expeditiously and usually reply is sent within a 
period of 5 to 7 days of receipt, except in the cases that are constrained by disputes or legal impediments.

 During the FY 2019-20, the Company had received 7 complaints (mostly in the nature of ‘query’) from the 
shareholders/ investors. All the complaints have been redressed to the satisfaction of the complainants.

 No shareholder / investor complaint was pending as on March 31, 2020.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

 The CSR Committee discharges the role of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee under Section 135 
of the Companies Act, 2013 which includes formulating and recommending to the Board, a Corporate Social 
Responsibility (CSR) Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company. During the year 2019-20, 
two CSR Committee meetings were held on November 06, 2019 and January 18, 2020. The composition of the 
Committee and attendance of the Members is as under:
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Names of Director Position held in the Committee No. of Committee Meetings attended
Sh. S. K. Kalra1 Chairman 1
Sh. P. P. Pareek2 Chairman 1
Dr. Kamal Gupta 3 Member -

4 Member 2
Dr. T. M. Bhasin5 Member 1
Sh. Vikas Goel Member 2

 1. Member & Chairman of the committee till November 08, 2019.

 2. Inducted as Member & Chairman of the Committee w.e.f. November 09, 2019.

 3. Member of the Committee till June 28, 2019.

 4. Member of the Committee w.e.f. June 28, 2019.

 5. Member of the Committee w.e.f. November 09, 2019.

 The terms of reference of the CSR Committee are as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. A detailed 
Report on CSR activities/ initiatives is also attached with the Board’s Report. 

 Ms. Monika Kochar, Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

 (E) Risk Management Committee

 The Risk Management Committee framed in accordance with the RBI guidelines for Primary Dealers and NBFCs 
reviews the overall risk management plan and framework and recommend changes to ensure their adequacy. 
The Committee ensures that the Company is complying with the internal policies already documented, controls, 
and procedures concerning the operation of the risk measurement system. During the year 2019- 20, four Risk 
Management Committee meetings were held on June 7, 2019, August 21, 2019, November 6, 2019 and January 
18, 2020. The composition of the Committee and attendance of the Members is as under:

Names of Director Position held in the Committee No. of Committee Meetings attended

Sh. S. K. Kalra Chairman 4
Sh. V.K Srivastava1 Member 1

Sh. Vikas Goel Member 4
Smt. Sunita Gupta Member 4

 1. Member of the Committee w.e.f. November 09, 2019.

 

During the year 2019-20, twenty six meetings of the said committee were held on 12th and 25th April, 2019, 9th 
and 23rd May, 2019, 6th and 20th June, 2019, 4th and 18th July, 2019, 1st , 14th and 28th August, 2019,  11th and 25th 
September, 2019, 9th and 23rd October, 2019,  6th and 20th November, 2019, 4th & 18th December, 2019, 1st, 15th 
and 28th January, 2020, 11th and 25th February, 2020, 9th and 20th March, 2020.

  The composition of the Committee and the attendance record of the Members is as under:

Names of Director Position held in the Committee No. of Committee Meetings attended
Dr. Kamal Gupta1 Chairman 6 
Sh. S. K. Kalra2 Chairman 25 
Dr. T. M. Bhasin3 Chairman 10

4 Member 18
Sh. Vikas Goel Member 26

 1. Member and Chairman of the Committee till June 28, 2019. 

 2. Chairman of the Committee from June 28, 2019 to November 08, 2019. Thereafter, he continued as member of the Committee.

 3. Inducted as Member and Chairman of the Committee w.e.f. 09.11.2019.

 4. Member of the Committee w.e.f. June 28, 2019.
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II Directors’ Remuneration

 The Company’s Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees is annexed 
as Annexure A to the Board’s Report. The Company’s remuneration policy is directed towards rewarding 
performance based on achievement of results and attracting and retaining the best talent.

 Matters of remuneration of Managing Director and Executive Director are considered by the Board of Directors 
of the Company, with the Interested Directors not participating. The terms of remuneration of these Directors are 
approved by the shareholders at the general body meeting. The details of remuneration paid to the Managing 

(` in lacs)

Sh. Vikas Goel, 
Managing Director & CEO

Smt. Sunita Gupta 
Executive Director & CFO

Salary 88.60 49.50

Perquisites and allowances 2.22 1.42

Company’s Contribution to PF 5.47 3.01

Performance Linked Incentive 4.18* 9.28

 * same is for the period from January 14, 2019 to March 31, 2019.

 Above remuneration includes variable pay (Performance linked incentive) which is paid based on performance of the company and 

by the Board. During 2019-20, variable pay of ` 4.18 lacs and ` 9.28 lacs (Prev. Year: ` Nil and ` 6.56 lacs) was paid to Sh. Vikas Goel and 
Smt. Sunita Gupta, respectively. During 2019-20, Sh. S. K. Dubey, Ex-Managing Director, was also paid an amount of ` 9.19 lacs towards 
Performance Linked Variable Pay (PLVP) pertaining to the period from April 1, 2018 to January 31, 2019.

valuation for the company as a whole, is also available.

CFO was upto August 31, 2020.

 Service conditions of both these Directors are governed by the service regulations of the Company. As per 
Regulation 15(iii) of the service regulations, their services can be terminated by a notice period of 3 months. No 
other severance fees is payable.

 The sitting fee payable to Non-Executive Directors is as under -

 1.  For Chairman of Board for attending each meeting of Board, sitting fee shall be ` 50000/- and for other 
members of the Board, sitting fee shall be ` 40000/- per meeting. 

 2.  For Chairman of Audit Committee / Nomination & Remuneration Committee / CSR Committee / Risk 
Management Committee / CP Issue Committee / IT Strategy Committee, the sitting fee shall be ` 30000/- for 
attending each such committee meeting, whereas the member of the said committee shall be entitled for a 
sitting fee of ` 25000/- for attending each such committee meeting. 

 3.  Sitting fee for each Only Independent Directors’ Meeting shall be ` 25000/- and for attending each meeting 
of (a) Share Transfer and Issue of Duplicate Shares Committee; and (b) Stakeholders’ Relationship 
Committee, the sitting shall be ` 10000/- and the honorarium paid to Independent Directors for holding 
interviews, if any, shall be ` 10000/-.

 In addition to the sitting fee, the Company also pays out of pocket expenses incurred by them for attending such 
meetings.
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(` in lacs)
Names of the Director Sitting Fees**

Sh. Sunil Mehta* 1.50

Dr. Kamal Gupta 1.55

Sh. P. P. Pareek 5.70

Sh. S. K. Kalra 9.50

6.00

Dr. Tejendra Mohan Bhasin 2.80

Sh. Vishesh Kumar Srivastava* 1.45

 * Sitting fee payable to these promoter directors has been paid to Punjab National Bank, who is the promoter of the Company, as per the 
instructions received from said bank/directors.

 ** Applicable service tax/GST paid extra.

 No other remuneration or stock option is in place. Apart from the sitting fees and reimbursement of expenses, 

III   Resume of Directors Proposed to be Appointed / Re-Appointed

 The brief resume of Directors to be appointed or re-appointed is given in the explanatory statement/annexure to 
the notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

IV  Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management

 The Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management of the Company has been posted at the Company’s 

compliance of the said Code during the year 2019-20. A declaration of Managing Director to this effect is also 
appended to this report.

V 

regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance is appended to this report.

VI 

of the Schedule II of the Listing Regulations.

VII 

 Location and time of last three Annual General Meetings (AGM) are as under:

Financial year Venue Date and time

2018-19
Plot No. 4, Sector 10, Dwarka, New Delhi 110 075.

August 28, 2019 at 1030 hrs 

2017-18 September 15, 2018 at 1100 hrs

2016-17 Punjab National Bank Auditorium, Central Staff College, September 16, 2017 at 1100 hrs

 Two special resolutions were passed in the last AGM held on August 28, 2019 for increase in borrowing powers 

consecutive years. During the year 2019-20, no special resolution was passed through postal ballot. 

 In May-June, 2020, your Company passed the following special resolution through postal ballot and the 
pattern of voting is given below. The Company had appointed Mr. Ankit Singhi, bearing CP No. 16274, failing 
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him Mr. Nitesh Latwal, Practising Company Secretary, bearing CP No. 16276, Partners of M/s PI & Associates 
& Practising Company Secretaries as the Scrutinizer for conducting the postal ballot process. 

  

To increase the  borrowing 134190365 shares 12754 shares

 Procedure followed in above postal ballot is as under –

 The notices containing the proposed resolutions and explanatory statement were sent to the shareholders by 
email in accordance with MCA General Circular No.14/2020 dated 8th April, 2020 and General Circular No. 
17/2020 dated 13th April, 2020. The evoting period was for 30 days from dispatch of notice. The Scrutinizer 
submitted the report to the Company. The voting results were announced within 48 hours of end of the evoting 
period. For evoting, the company is having agreement with National Securities Depository Limited ('NSDL') for 

to participate and vote on the resolutions to be passed through Postal Ballot.

 As on the date of this report, no business is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot.

VIII  Management Discussion and Analysis

 Management Discussion and Analysis has been given separately in the Annual Report.

IX Disclosures

 a) Related Party Transactions: 

large. None of Director is related to each other. The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of related 
party transactions and also on procedure for dealing with such transactions. The said policy is also available 
on the website of the Company at the link https://www.pnbgilts.com/data/governence/1554113744.pdf 
Details of all related party transactions with PNB, promoter  (having shareholding of 74.07% in the company)
and others are given in Note No. 34 of the Financial Statements. No other entity is holding more than 1% of 
shareholding in the company.

 b) Compliance by the Company: There has not been any non-compliance, penalties or strictures imposed 
on the Company by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any other statutory authority, on any matter relating to the 
capital markets during the last three years.

 c)  Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism: The Company has put in place the Whistle Blower Policy (including 
Vigil Mechanism). The Audit Committee on time-to time basis reviews the functioning of the same and 
no employee / director has been denied access to the Audit Committee. For further detail(s), please refer the 
Board’s Report.

 d)  Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013 –

  ii. Number of complaints disposed of during FY 2019-20 : Nil 

  iii. Number of complaints pending as on end of the FY 2019-20: Nil

 e)  Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: The Company does not deal 
in commodities and foreign exchange. Since there is no exposure in commodities and foreign exchange, 
the disclosure pursuant to SEBI Circular dated November 15, 2018 is not required to be given. Regarding, 
exposure in hedging activities, the Company is having exposure in Interest Rate Swaps and other derivatives. 
Details of the same are given in Note No. 5 of the Financial Statements.
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 f)  
Regulations: 

continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 

 g)  Total fees paid to Statutory Auditors of the Company: During 2019-20, a fee of Rs. 40.50 lacs plus GST 
thereon (totaling to Rs. 47.79 lacs) for all services, was paid by the Company to the statutory auditor and all 

 h)  
programme or any scheme or proposal involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad: 
CRISIL and ICRA have rated commercial paper programme of the Company at A1+. The rating indicates 
highest safety.  There was no revision in the said ratings during the year under review.

 i) Others

   The Company is complying with all the mandatory requirements related to corporate governance under the 
Listing Regulations. Compliance with respect to non-mandatory requirement(s) under the Part E of Schedule 
II of said Regulations is also given in this report.

   As per RBI guidelines, the Primary Dealers are not permitted to set up step-down subsidiaries. As such, 
the Company, being a Primary Dealer, has not formed any subsidiary and thus the policy for determining 
material subsidiary has not been framed.

Regulation 24 on corporate governance requirements with respect to subsidiary of listed entity, which is not 
applicable to the Company as it is not having any subsidiary company) and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation 
(2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations.

X Means of communication

 Print

substantially the whole of India in English language and in one daily newspaper published in the language of the 

of the Board Meetings for approval of the aforesaid results and other notices / communications are also published 
in the same newspapers.

 Internet

Company  www.pnbgilts.com. No presentations were made to institutional investors or to the analysts.

 Annual General Meeting

  Date and time : September 30, 2020 at 10:30 a.m.

  Venue  : Annual General Meeting through Video Conferencing/ Other   
    Audio Visual Means (VC/OAVM facility) 

  Financial Year : April 1, 2019 to March 31, 2020

  Record Date  : September 05, 2020

  Dividend Payment Date : Within 30 days of declaration in AGM, subject to resumption of 
    postal services.
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2. Listing on Stock Exchange : Listed in September, 2000 
    BSE Ltd., Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,  
    Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001. 

     National Stock Exchange of India Ltd. 
    Exchange Plaza, 5th Floor, Plot No. C/1, G-Block,   
    Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051.

 Annual listing fee of the above-mentioned Stock Exchanges has been paid in time.

3. Market Price Data: 
India Ltd. and BSE Ltd. is given as under:

        (`)
NSE BSE

Month High Low High Low

Apr-19 33.10 29.75 33.90 30.00
May-19 34.70 28.70 34.90 28.15
Jun-19 36.00 33.05 36.05 32.85
Jul-19 39.60 33.65 39.50 33.70
Aug-19 39.45 31.10 39.40 30.40
Sep-19 36.50 31.80 36.50 31.65
Oct-19 33.40 26.75 34.00 25.90
Nov-19 30.40 27.50 30.40 27.55
Dec-19 33.45 27.60 33.00 27.65
Jan-20 29.90 27.65 29.75 27.65
Feb-20 32.75 27.00 32.20 27.10
Mar-20 31.40 20.30 31.30 21.50

Source : NSE and BSE website

 Information on the daily share prices: 
Financial Express, Business Standard, etc. The Company has been marked under group B by BSE.

 The Stock Code at BSE and NSE is as under:
 BSE: 532366 NSE: PNBGILTS

4. Share Transfer Agents:
 MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited 
 F-65, 1st Floor, Okhla Industrial Area Phase – I, New Delhi-110 020
 Tel No.: (011) 41406149-52
 Fax No.: (011) 41709881
 E-mail : helpdeskdelhi@mcsregistrars.com

5. Outstanding ADRs / GDRs / Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impacton 
equity: Not applicable.

6. For the shareholders holding shares in physical form: Investors’ queries/requests for change in address/ 

sent directly to MCS Share Transfer Agent Limited at the above address.

7. For the shareholders holding shares in dematerialized form: Shareholders holding shares in electronic/ 
dematerialized mode should address all their correspondence like change of address/bank details, registration 
of e-mail IDs etc. to their respective depository participants (DPs). The updation of particulars in the records of 
the DP shall result in automatic updation of records of the Company.

8. Share Transfer / Dematerialisation System: The shares of the Company are traded compulsorily in demat 

were received by the Company/Registrar in physical mode. For transfer/transmission of shares in physical 
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accordance with Regulation 40 of Listing Regulations, physical transfer of shares is prohibited with effect from 
April 1, 2019. Further, in pursuance of SEBI’s circular, Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit is also being 
conducted regularly on a quarterly basis. During the course of audit, no discrepancy in updation / maintenance 
of the Register of Members or processing of the demat requests was found and the capital held in physical mode 
and demat mode tallied with the issued capital.

9. The Company is not in manufacturing industry and thus there are no plants of the Company.

No. of equity 
shares held

No. of Shareholders % of Shareholders No. of shares
held

% of Shareholding

30605 74.65 4801074 2.67

501-1000 4981 12.15 4020354 2.23

1001-2000 2566 6.26 3955551 2.20

2001-3000 851 2.08 2218900 1.23

3001-4000 408 0.99 1486717 0.83

4001-5000 405 0.99 1920470 1.07

5001-10000 641 1.56 4812301 2.67

10001 and above 541 1.32 156794767 87.10

Total 40998 100.00 180010134 100.00

Particulars No. of shares held % of Shareholding

Promoter (PNB) 133333333 74.07

and Insurance Companies
  481026 0.27

Bodies Corporate, Trust & Foundations and NBFCs 5896494 3.28

Indian Public and Directors 38380997 21.32

NRIs and FPIs 1788050 0.99
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority 130234 0.07
Total 180010134 100.00

Date Particulars of Issue Number of
Shares

Total Number 
of shares

Nominal value  
of Shares (` lacs)

July, 1996 Initial Equity Base 50000000 50000000 5000.00

August, 1999 Issue of Bonus shares in the ratio of 1:2 25000000 75000000 7500.00

September, 1999 Issue of Right shares in the ratio of 1:3 25000000 100000000 10000.00

July, 2000 Initial Public Offer 35007600 135007600 13500.76

July, 2013 Issue of Bonus shares in the ratio of 1:3 44992534 180010134 18001.01

  The shares of the Company are traded compulsorily in demat mode. At present (as on March 31, 2020) 
99.77 per cent of the shareholding is held in demat mode.

 There are no outstanding GDRs/ADRs/warrants or any convertible instruments.
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 Dividends that are not claimed, within seven years from the date of its transfer to unpaid/unclaimed dividend 
account, will, in terms of the provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013, be transferred to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) established by the Government. In respect of transfers made after coming 
into effect of the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) 
Rules, 2016 (as amended from time to time), shareholders will be entitled to claim the dividend transferred from 
IEPF in accordance with such procedure and on submission of such documents, as may be prescribed by the 
IEPF Authority. Further, sale proceeds of fractional entitlements arising out of bonus issue made in 2013, 
remaining unclaimed for 7 years, will also be transferred by the Company to IEPF.

 The details of unclaimed dividend as on March 31, 2020 are as follows:

Financial Year Amt of 
dividend  
(` Lacs)

Unclaimed 
Dividend as on 

31.3.2020  (` Lacs)

Unclaimed 
dividend 

Percentage

Last date for 
making claim*

Last date for 
making transfer 

to IEPF

2012-13 (Final Dividend) 1350.08 5.18 0.38 23rd Jul 2020 22nd Aug 2020

2013-14 (Final Dividend) 1620.09 6.86 0.42 1st Oct 2021 31st Oct 2021

2014-15 (Final Dividend) 2700.15 12.02 0.45 20th Oct 2022 19th Nov 2022
2015-16 (Final Dividend) 1980.11 9.01 0.46 19th Oct 2023 18th Nov 2023

2016-17 (Final Dividend) 4500.25 23.61 0.52 16th Oct 2024 15th Nov 2024

2017-18 (Final Dividend) 1800.10 9.40 0.52 15th Oct 2025 14th Nov 2025

2018-19 (Final Dividend) 2520.14 10.54 0.42 29th Sep 2026 29th Oct, 2026

IEPF in August, 2020. 

 The details of sale proceeds of fractional entitlements, arising out of bonus issue made in 2013, as on March 31, 
2020 are as follows:

Date of 
Payment

Total 
Fractional 
Entitlement 

(` Lacs)

Unclaimed 
Fractional 

Entitlement as on 
31.03.2020

(` Lacs)

Last date 
for making 

claim*

Last date for 
making transfer 

to IEPF

Sale proceeds of 
fractional entitlements, 
arising out of bonus 
issue

10th Sept 
2013

1.65 0.32 9th Sep 2020 10th Oct 2020

 * The Company is regularly sending individual advice letters (along with format of indemnity bond) to shareholders 
for claiming their dividend(s) not claimed by them. It is hereby once again requested to shareholders who have 
not yet claimed the said dividend(s), to lodge their claim with the Company by submitting an application and an 
indemnity bond on or before the last date for making claim. A format of indemnity bond in this respect is also 
available at the Company’s website (www.pnbgilts.com).

 In addition, as per above Rules, all the shares, in respect of which dividend has not been claimed by the 
shareholders for seven consecutive years, will also be transferred to IEPF. During the year 2019-20, the company 
had transferred 31443 shares to IEPF Authority. The shareholders whose dividend/ shares as transferred to the 
IEPF Authority can now claim their shares from the Authority by following the Refund Procedure as detailed on 
the website of IEPF Authority http://www.iepf.gov.in/IEPF/corporates.html

to the concerned shareholders at their address registered with the Company/Depository Participant, inter alia, 
providing the details of the shares liable for such transfer and for taking appropriate action. These shares have  
now been transferred to IEPF authority following statutory provisions. 
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 Shareholders holding shares under more than one Folio/ Client ID: This is in the interest of the shareholders 
who are holding shares under more than one Folio/Client ID that they get their holding consolidated under a 
single Folio/Client ID. This leads to a better follow-up on their grievances. Further, this will also help in avoiding 
multiple mailing of the Annual Reports, dividend instruments and other communication(s) to single person. 
Consolidation also provides convenience in maintaining the track of shares in best and easiest manner.

 1. The Board

is presently, not having a regular Chairman of the Board. 

 2. Shareholder Rights

 3. 

 4. Reporting of Internal Auditor

 The Internal Auditor reports to Audit Committee through top management of the Company. The Internal Auditors 
participate and discuss freely in each meeting of the Audit Committee and the reports submitted by them, are 
discussed by the Audit Committee.

 Ms. Monika Kochar,
 Company Secretary and Vice President 
 PNB Gilts Ltd.
 5, Sansad Marg New Delhi 110 001
 Tel : 011-23325759/ 23325779 Fax : 011-23325751
 Email : pnbgilts@pnbgilts.com, m.kochar@pnbgilts.com

On behalf of Board of Directors

      Sd/- 
(Vikas Goel)
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 08322541

Sd/- 
(Tejendra Mohan Bhasin)
Independent Director

DIN: 03091429

Date :  September 4, 2020

Place: New Delhi



PNB Gilts Annual Report 2019-20 50

DECLARATION
To 
The Members of 
PNB Gilts Ltd.
5, Sansad Marg
New Delhi – 110 001
Dear Member,

Regulations, 2015, the Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management Personnel has already been laid 
down and also posted on company’s website (www.pnbgilts.com).

Code, I, Vikas Goel, hereby declare that all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the company have 
complied with the Company’s “Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Management” during the year 2019-20.

   For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Dated : September 02, 2020 (Vikas Goel)
Place : New Delhi Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 08322541

PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARIES’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To 
The Members,
PNB GILTS LIMITED 

5, Sansad Marg, New Delhi-110001 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by PNB GILTS LIMITED (“the Company”), 
for the year ended on March 31, 2020, as stipulated in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) 
and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations"). 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. 
Our examination was limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company 
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to our examination of the relevant records and the 
explanations given to us and the representations made by the Directors and the Management, we certify that the 
Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations 
for the year ended March 31, 2020. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

For Pranav Kumar & Associates  
Company Secretaries 

Sd/-
Date: July 31, 2020  (Arpita Saxena) 
Place: Ghaziabad  Partner 
 Mem. No : A23822: CP No.: 11962 
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Annual Business Responsibility Report 
Section A: General Information about the Company

1 Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company L74899DL1996PLC077120

2 Name of the Company PNB Gilts Limited. 

3 Registered address 5, Sansad Marg,  New Delhi – 110001

4 Website www.pnbgilts.com

5 E-mail id pnbgilts@pnbgilts.com

6 Financial Year reported 2019 – 20 

7 Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in (industrial 
activity code-wise)

Securities Trading 
NIC Code – 6599

8 List three key products/services that the Company 
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet) Government Securities conducted by RBI (Reserve 

Bank of India). Acting as arranger to privately placed 
debt securities and non-convertible preference 
shares.

b)  Trading in Government Securities, Treasury Bills, 
Money Market Instruments, and Non SLR in 
secondary Market. 

(CSGL) Accounts.

9 Total number of locations where business activity is 
undertaken by the Company

i.    Number of International Locations (Provide details 
of major 5)

None

ii.   Number of National Locations

10 Markets served by the Company – Local/State/ 
National/International.

National

Section B: Financial Details of the Company

1 Paid up Capital (INR) ` 18001.01 lacs

2 Total Turnover (INR) `  424036 crore* (of 2019-20)

3 ` 18,635.46 lacs (of 2019-20)

4 Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility ` 237.99 lacs. This is detailed in the Annual Report of 
CSR Activities, Annexure B to the Board’s Report.

5 List the activities in which expenditure in 4 above 
has been incurred.

Please refer Annexure – B to the Board’s Report.

*It denotes sales turnover

Section C: Other Details

1 Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/ Companies? No

2 Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the BR Initiatives of the parent 
company? If yes, then indicate the number of such subsidiary company(s)

Not Applicable

3 Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.) that the Company does business 
with; participate in the BR initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the percentage of 
such entity/entities? [ Less than 30%, 30-60%, More than 60%]

No
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Section D: BR Information
1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR

 S.No Particulars Details
1 Details of the Director/Director responsible for 

implementation of the BR policy/policies
DIN 08322541

Name Mr. Vikas Goel

Designation Managing Director & CEO

2 DIN, if applicable NA

Name Ms. Monika Kochar

Designation Company Secretary

Telephone Number 011 – 23325759

E-mail Id m.kochar@pnbgilts.com

2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies 

 The National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of Business (NVGs) 
released by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs has adopted nine principles of Business Responsibility. These 

P1 Business should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability

P2 Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout 
their life cycle

P3 Businesses should promote the wellbeing of all employees

P4 Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those 
who are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized

P5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights

P6 Business should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment

P7
manner

P8 Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development

P9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible 
manner

3. Details of Compliance (Reply in Y/N)

 S.No Questions P 1  P 2 P 3  P 4  P 5  P 6 P 7  P 8  P 9

1. Do you have policy/policies for.... Y N.A. Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

2.
with the relevant stakeholders?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

3. Does the policy conform to any national /
international standards? If yes, specify? (50 words)

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

4.
If yes, has it been signed by MD/owner/CEO/
appropriate Board Director?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

5.

implementation of the policy?
oversee some of these principles, however the Board 
is actively involved through various other committees 
i.e. Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration 
Committee, CSR Committee, Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee etc. to oversee these principles 
under various segments of business operations.
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6. Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? https://www.pnbgilts.com/data/governence/1599216408.pdf

7.
relevant internal and external stakeholders?

Yes, wherever appropriate.

8. Does the company have in-house structure to 
implement the policy/policies?

Y N.A Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

9. Does the Company have a grievance redressal 
mechanism related to the policy/policies to 
address stakeholders’ grievances related to the 
policy/policies?

Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

10.
evaluation of the working of this policy by an 
internal or external agency?

has not carried out a separate independent audit of 
working of this policy. But the internal audit function of 
the Company periodically looks at the implementation 
of the policy.

4. Governance related to BR

 S.No Particulars Details

1 Indicate the frequency with which the Board of 
Directors, Committee of the Board or CEO to 
assess the BR performance of the Company. 
Within 3 months, 3- 6 months, Annually, More 
than 1 year

The Board of Directors of the Company, either directly 
or through its Committees, assesses various initiatives 
forming part of the BR performance of the Company on 
a periodic basis.

2 Does the Company publish a BR or Sustainability 
Report? What is the hyperlink for viewing this and will be published as part of the Annual Report. 

The same can be accessed at Company's website  
www.pnbgilts.com

Section E: Principle-wise performance

Principle 1 

Business should conduct and govern themselves with ethics, transparency and accountability

 S.No Particulars Details

1 Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and 
corruption cover only the company? Yes/No

Yes

2 Does it extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/ 
Suppliers/Contractors/ NGOs/Others? 

No

3
received in the past Financial Year and what 
percentage was satisfactorily resolved by the 
management? If so, provide details thereof, in 
about 50 words or so

For details on investor complaints, refer to 
“Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee” section of 
Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report. 
With regard to Client complaints, the company has not 
received any complaint during the year 2019-20. 

It is of utmost importance to the Company to ensure that 
its stakeholders’ concerns are resolved expeditiously. 
To this end, the Company is happy to report that all the 
reported complaints were resolved.
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Principle 2: 

Business should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their 
life cycle.

The Company is a Non -Banking Financial Company and is not engaged in a business concerning design of products 
and related activities that could raise economic risks and/or hazardous opportunities. Accordingly, keeping in view 
the business of the Company, the Company is not required to undertake product life cycle sustainability.

Principle 3: 
Business should promote the well-being of all employees

 S.No Particulars Details

1 Please indicate the total number of employees 40

2 Please indicate the total number of employees 
hired on temporary/ contractual/ casual basis

-

3 Please indicate the Number of permanent women 
employees

15

4 Please indicate the Number of permanent 
employees with disabilities

Being an equal opportunity employer and following 
the law, the Company does not mandate disclosure 
of disability. As on 31.03.2020, one differently abled 
person has voluntarily declared the status.

5 Do you have an employee association that is 
recognised by management

There is no employee association

6 What percentages of your permanent employees 
are members of this recognised employee 
association?

Not Applicable

7 Please indicate the number of complaints relating 
to child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, 

No complaints relating to child labour, forced labour, 
involuntary labour and sexual harassment were 
received during the FY 2019-20.

8 What percentage of your under mentioned 
employees were given safety and skill up-
gradation training in the last year?

a) Permanent Employees  58%  ( 23 Employees)

b) Permanent Women Employees  38%  (15 Employees) 

c) Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees  NA

d) Employees with Disabilities  0%

Principle 4: 
Business should respect the interest of and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who 
are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

 S.No Particulars Details

1
external stakeholders?

Yes. The Company’s key stakeholders are promoters, 
employees, customers, business associates, investors 
(including shareholders), suppliers, regulatory 
agencies, CSR implementation agencies etc. The 
Company values the support of all its stakeholders and 
respects their interest and concerns. The Company has 
continuous engagement with its various stakeholders to 
understand their concerns, assess their requirements 
and respond to their needs in an effective manner.
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2
the disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized 
stakeholders

Yes, to certain extent. The Company through its CSR 
activities has partnered with implementing agencies 
towards projects aimed at underprivileged and 
marginalised sections of the society.

3 Are there any special initiatives taken by the 
Company to engage with the disadvantaged, 
vulnerable, and marginalized stakeholders? If 
so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or 
so

Through its CSR initiatives, the Company is committed 
to design and implement projects that work toward 
socio-economic upliftment of underprivileged and 
marginalised sections of the society. In partnership with 
implementing agencies, the company has extended 
its support towards social issues like cancer care, 
promotion of education  etc.

Principle 5: 

Business should respect and promote human rights.

 S.No Particulars Details

1 Does the policy of the company on human rights 
cover only the company or extend to the Group/
Joint Ventures/Suppliers/ Contractors NGOs/
Others?

The Company appreciates and believes that 
human rights are inherent, universal, indivisible and 
interdependent in nature. The Company respects and 
promotes human rights for all individuals. The policies 
of the Company strive to ensure that the operations be 
conducted with honesty, integrity and openness with 
respect for human rights and interests of employees 
but the policies don’t extend to Suppliers/ Contractors/
NGOs/others etc. The Company respects  and 
adheres to all the human rights laws framed under 
the Constitution of India. The Company treats every 
stakeholder with respect and dignity. Every customer, 
employee and other stakeholders beyond the workplace 
are treated with dignity irrespective of his/ her position. 
The Company will continue to conduct its business in 
a manner that respects the rights and dignity of all the 
people, complying with all legal requirements. 

2

was satisfactorily resolved by the management?

For details on investor complaints, refer to 
“Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee” section of 
Corporate Governance Report in the Annual Report. 
With regard to Client complaints, the company has not 
received any complaint during the year 2019-20. 

It is of utmost importance to the Company to ensure that 
its stakeholders’ concerns are resolved expeditiously. 
To this end, the Company is happy to report that all the 
reported complaints were resolved.
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Principle 6: 

Business should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment.

 S.No Particulars Details

1 Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only 
the Company or extends to the Group/Joint 
Ventures/Suppliers/ Contractors /NGOs/others

The Company has a dedicated CSR Policy which serves 
as the guideline for taking initiatives for protecting and 
restoring environment. This policy is applicable to the 
Company.

2 Does the Company have strategies / initiatives 
to address global environmental issues such as 
climate change, global warming, etc.? Y / N. If 
yes, please give hyperlink for webpage etc.

Not applicable, since the Company is engaged in 
Financial Activity.

3 Does the company identify and assess potential 
environmental risks? Y/N

Yes, the Company is aware of the direct and indirect 
environmental risks and considers them in decision 
making. The Company assesses the impact of potential 
environmental risks and has an active Business 
Continuity Plan (BCP) in case of exigencies/Natural 
Calamities.

4 Does the company have any project related to 
Clean Development Mechanism? If Yes, whether 

The Company does not have any project related to 
Clean Development Mechanism

5

renewable energy, etc.?

All the initiatives of the Company are towards clean 
technology. The Company uses such hardware in 

energy consumption. The Air conditioning equipment 
is maintained regularly thereby saving energy and 
costs. All the electronic devices are star rated, hence 
consume less energy. Regular efforts are made to 
conserve the energy, viz. use of low energy consuming 
LED lightings, switching of lights when not in use etc. 
are being encouraged.

6 Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the 
company within the permissible limits given by 

Not applicable

7 Number of show cause/legal notices received 
from CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not 
resolved to satisfaction) as on end of Financial Year

Nil

Principle 7: 

 S.No Particulars Details

1 Is your company a member of any trade and 
chamber or association? If Yes, Name only those 
major ones that your business deals with

Primary Dealers Association of India (PDAI) and 
The Fixed Income Money Market and Derivatives 
Association of India (FIMMDA)
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2
associations for the advancement or improvement 
of public good? Yes/No; if yes specify the broad 
areas (drop box: Governance and Administration, 
Economic Reforms, Inclusive Development 
Policies, Energy security, Water, Food Security, 
Sustainable Business Principles, Others)

No

Principle 8: 

Business should support inclusive growth and equitable development

 S.No Particulars Details

1
initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to 
Principle 8? If yes details thereof.

Yes, as a responsible corporate citizen, PNB Gilts 
promotes sustainable and inclusive development. 
Some of initiatives include promotion of education 
especially to below poverty line children, providing 
access to better health care services etc. 

2 Are the programmes/projects undertaken through 
in-house team/own foundation/external NGO/
government structures/any other organization?

As part of the CSR interventions, the Company has 
partnered with various implementing agencies. In 
addition, the company also donates directly as well 
every year to either of Prime Minister’s National Relief 
Fund/ PM Cares Fund / Swachh Bharat Kosh.

The Company is in the practice of making such 

Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

3
initiative

The progress on the Company’s CSR initiatives is 
periodically reviewed by the CSR Committee and 

Year where PNB Gilts had started to explore its CSR 
avenues with help of some external Agencies so the 
Company is in the process of establishing suitable 
framework to capture the impact (social/ economic and 
developmental) of its initiatives.

4 What is your Company’s direct contribution to 
community development projects - Amount in INR 
and the details of the projects undertaken?

These are detailed in Annexure B to the Board’s Report.

5
development initiative is successfully adopted by 
the community? Please explain in 50 words, or so.

At PNB Gilts, the CSR projects and programs are un-
dertaken after identifying the need of the project and its 
implications. The Company has partnered with few Im-
plementation Agencies having a regular track record, 
while extending its CSR contribution. The Company 
also monitors and regulates to ensure that its projects 
are being implemented effectively either through inter-
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Principle 9: 

Business should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.

 S.No Particulars Details

1 What percentage of customer complaints/
consumer cases are pending as on the end of 

Nil

2 Does the company display product information 
on the product label, over and above what is 
mandated as per local laws? Yes/No/N.A. /
Remarks(additional information) 

The Company is a Primary Dealer, duly registered with 
Reserve Bank of India. The Company is permitted to 
maintain Constituent Subsidiary General Ledger  account 
(CSGL account) with Reserve bank of India for its clients, 
which is different from its own SGL account and used 
exclusively for maintaining Government securities of its 
constituents in dematerialized form. The transactions on 
behalf of constituents and the operations in the CSGL  
accounts are conducted in accordance with the guidelines 
issued by RBI on CSGL accounts.

accordance with RBI guidelines to all its CSGL account 
holders.
The Company does not sell any product, hence it is not 

regulatory requirements relating to its business.

3
against the company regarding unfair trade 
practices, irresponsible advertising and/or anti-

provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so. 

No such instance.

4 Did your company carry out any consumer 
survey/ consumer satisfaction trends? 

No

On behalf of Board of Directors

        Sd/-
(Vikas Goel)
Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 08322541

Sd/-
(Tejendra Mohan Bhasin)
Independent Director

DIN: 03091429

Date :  September 4, 2020

Place: New Delhi
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the 

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To, 

The Members of 

PNB GILTS LIMITED 

5, Sansad Marg, 

New Delhi- 110001 

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of 

PNB GILTS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the Company) having CIN: L74899DL1996PLC077120 and having 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in, as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by 

the Company & its directors, we hereby certify that as on 31st march 2020, none of the Directors on the Board of the 

Company, as stated be

companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory 

Authority :

Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company

1. Mr. Prem Prakash Pareek 00615296 10/02/2009

2. Mr. Satish Kumar Kalra 01952165 15/09/2018

3. 07087902 28/06/2019

4. Dr. Tejendra Mohan Bhasin 03091429 30/07/2019 

5. Mr. Vishesh Kumar Srivastava 07234326 30/07/2019

6. Mr. Vikas Goel 08322541 01/02/2019

7. Ms. Sunita Gupta 06902258  26/06/2014



PNB Gilts Annual Report 2019-20 60

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the 

which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Ashu Gupta & Co.
Company Secretaries

Ashu Gupta
Place :  New Delhi (Prop.)
Date :   10.06.2020 FCS No.: 4123
   CP No.:6646
    F004123B000331032
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Members of PNB Gilts Ltd,
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

Basis for Opinion

Key Audit Matters

S r . 
No.

Key Audit Matter Auditor’s Response
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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 Rasool Singhal & Co 

(CA. Kanti Kumar Gupta)
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“Annexure- A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

PNB Gilts Ltd

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

Auditor’s Responsibility

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Opinion

Rasool Singhal & Co 

(CA. Kanti Kumar Gupta

"Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
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`

Assessment 
Year

Section under which 
demand raised

Amount provided 
in the books and 

not paid

Amount not provided 
for and treated as 
contingent liability

Forum where 
dispute

Total 70.75 1,115.23
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 Rasool Singhal & Co 

(CA. Kanti Kumar Gupta)
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Annexure ‘C’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Sr. No. Area Examined Observations/Findings

 Rasool Singhal & Co 

(CA. Kanti Kumar Gupta)
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Non Banking Financial Companies Auditor’s Report for the Year Ended 31.03.2020

To

 Rasool Singhal & Co 

(CA. Kanti Kumar Gupta)
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Comments of The Comptroller and Auditor General of India

 

(C. Nedunchezhian)
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`

Notes  As at  31 March 2020  As at  31 March 2019 

ASSETS

Financial assets

       1,425,040.24                              951,418.14 

                 789.82                                     785.88 

TOTAL        1,425,830.06 952,204.03 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 

LIABILITIES 

Financial liabilities

Balance Sheet as at 31st  March, 2020 
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`

Notes  As at  31 March 2020  As at  31 March 2019 

       1,319,831.47                              862,996.01 

              1,745.52                                     440.80 

Equity

          104,253.08                                88,767.22 

TOTAL        1,425,830.06                              952,204.03 

For and on behalf of the Board

 Rasool Singhal & Co 

(CA. Kanti Kumar Gupta)

(Vishesh Kumar Srivastava) (Vikas Goel) (Sunita Gupta) (Monika Kochar)
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st March, 2020

`

Notes  Year ended   
31 March 2020 

 Year ended  
31 March 2019 

Revenue from operations

Total revenue from operations  88,224.45  50,779.42 

Total income  88,259.87  50,801.34 

Expenses 

Total expenses  55,157.72  42,499.28 

tax 
 33,102.15   8,302.07 

 24,980.57   8,302.07 

 Total Tax Expenses   6,345.11   3,016.29 

 18,635.46   5,285.78 
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`

Notes  Year ended   
31 March 2020 

 Year ended  
31 March 2019 

  Other comprehensive income  

 

 Other comprehensive income  (115.19)   (55.43)

Total comprehensive income for the 

comprehensive income for the year)  18,520.27   5,230.35 

For and on behalf of the Board

 Rasool Singhal & Co 

(CA. Kanti Kumar Gupta)

(Vishesh Kumar Srivastava) (Vikas Goel) (Sunita Gupta) (Monika Kochar)
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Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2020
a. Equity share capital `

Particulars Notes  Amount 

       18,001.01 

b. Other equity `

Particulars Reserves and surplus Total

Statutory 
reserve

Securities  
premium reserve

General 
reserve

Market  Capital 
reserve

Retained 
earning

Balance as at 31st  March, 2018 24,097.54   2,501.27 9,776.54      6,300.00 6,320.04 18,710.60 67,705.99 

Total comprehensive income 24,097.54 2,501.27 9,776.54  6,300.00 6,320.04 23,940.95 72,936.34 

Transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners:

Balance as at 31st March, 2019 25,154.70 2,501.27 9,776.54 6,300.00 6,320.04 20,713.66 70,766.21 

Total comprehensive income 25,154.70 2,501.27 9,776.54 6,300.00 6,320.04 39,237.71 89,290.26 

Transactions with owners in their 
capacity as owners:

Balance as at 31st March, 2020 28,881.79   2,501.27 9,776.54  6,300.00 6,320.04 32,472.45 86,252.07 

For and on behalf of the Board

Rasool Singhal & Co 

(CA. Kanti Kumar Gupta)

(Vishesh Kumar Srivastava) (Vikas Goel) (Sunita Gupta) (Monika Kochar)



PNB Gilts Annual Report 2019-20 78

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March, 2020

`

 Year ended
31 March 2020 

 Year ended
31 March 2019 

              24,980.57                 8,302.07 
Adjustments for 

                   624.51                  (651.25)

Adjustment for changes in operating activity

Cash used in operations (384,488.69)           (382,257.26)

( A ) Net cash used in operating activity (389,787.08)           (384,318.90)

Adjustment for changes in investing activity

( B ) Net cash used in investing activity (134.28)                    (49.81)
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`

 Year ended
31 March 2020 

 Year ended
31 March 2019 

( C )           389,975.24             384,352.75 

                     53.88                    (15.96)

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the year                     74.40                      20.52 

Balances with banks

                   74.40                   20.52 

statements.

For and on behalf of the Board

 Rasool Singhal & Co 

(CA. Kanti Kumar Gupta)

(Vishesh Kumar Srivastava) (Vikas Goel) (Sunita Gupta) (Monika Kochar)
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NOTE 1

A Corporate information

B Basis of preparation 

Statement of Compliance

Basis of measurement

Functional & presentation Currency

NOTE 2

Ia. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) and intangible assets
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Ib. Investment Properties

Ic. Depreciation on Property, plant and equipment, Investment Properties and Amortization of intangible assets
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II. Leases 

Company as a lessee:

The Company as a lessor

Transition
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IV. Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

V. Accounting of Expenses 
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VII. Financial Instruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement

 
 
 

i Debt Instruments at Amortised cost:
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ii Debt instruments at FVTOCI

iii 

  Debt instrument at FVTPL

  Equity investments

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
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Subsequent measurement 

IX. Cash and cash equivalents

X. Fair value measurement

XI. Revenue recognition 
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XII.     Taxes

Current income tax

Deferred tax
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XIII. Segment Reporting

XVI. Earnings per share

XV.  Dividend and Tax on Dividend

XVI. Corporate Social Responsibility ('CSR') expenditure

XVII. Accounting for Repo Transactions



PNB Gilts Annual Report 2019-2089

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020  (` in lacs)

PNB Gilts Annual Report 2019-2089

Note 3: Cash and cash equivalents  31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Total 74.40    20.52 

Note 4: Bank balance other than above  31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Total 564.94 10,559.88 

*'Earmarked balances with banks

Total 76.94    71.88 

^ 

Part I

 As at 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Particulars  Notional 
amounts 

 Fair value 
assets 

 Fair value 
liabilities 

 Notional 
amounts 

 Fair value 
assets 

 Fair value 
liabilities 

instruments
5,014,616.10 97,667.49  102,683.35 2,441,558.80 37,467.43 38,721.80 



PNB Gilts Annual Report 2019-20 90

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020  (` in lacs)

Part II
Hedging activities and derivatives

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments (Undesignated derivatives)

Particulars As at 31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019
Notional 
amount

Derivative 
asset

Notional 
amount

Derivative 
liability

Notional 
amount

Derivative 
asset

Notional 
amount

Derivative 
liability

Total 102,558.05   2,102.48  470,500.00 7,169.56 94,558.80 1,098.98 137,000.00  1,472.72 

Note 6: Loans

Particulars  31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 
At amortised Cost
Others

                7,500.00 5,022.23 
Term loans

Total (A) Gross              7,744.85                    5,257.34 

Total (A) Net              7,744.85 5,257.34 

Total (B) Gross              7,744.85                    5,257.34 

Total (B) Net              7,744.85                    5,257.34 

Loans in India
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020  (` in lacs)

Total (C) Gross              7,744.85                    5,257.34 

Total (C) Net              7,744.85                    5,257.34 

Note 7: Investments (Stock-in-Trade)

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Total gross (A)          1,296,451.40 881,771.57 

Total (B)          1,296,451.40 881,771.57 

Total (A) to tally with (B) 881,771.57 

Total Net D = (A) -(C)          1,296,451.40 881,771.57 

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 
Interest accrued but not due on :

Total   22,537.16   16,341.40 
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020  (` in lacs)

Note 9: Current Tax Assets
Particulars  31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

 Total   327.53   306.59 

Note 10: Tax Expenses

March, 2020

 Particulars  Year ended
March 31, 2020 

 Year ended  
March 31 2019 

Income not subject to tax    

6,345.11                3,016.29 

Deferred Tax (liabilities) / assets  Year ended
March 31, 2020 

 Year ended  
March 31 2019 

Deferred tax liability

Gross deferred tax liability (996.07)                  (600.49)

Deferred tax asset
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Gross deferred tax asset 107.86                   697.91 

Net Deferred Tax (Liability)/ Asset     (888.21)                     97.42 

2019-20  Income Statement  OCI 

Net Deferred Tax    1,022.37                    (38.74)

2018-19  Income  
Statement 

 OCI 

Net Deferred Tax    1,291.45                    (29.77)

Note 11A: Investment Property

FY 2019-20 

S. 
No.

Particulars GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Cost as 
at 

1st April, 
2019

Addition 
during 

the year

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 
during the 

year

Total cost 
as at 
31st 

March, 
2020

As at 
1st April, 

2019

For the 
period

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 

during the year

As at 
31st 

March, 
2020

As at 
31st 

March, 
2020

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

Total 65.81  - - 65.81  37.39  1.38 -  38.77  27.04 28.41 
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FY 2018-19

S. 
No.

Particulars GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Cost as 
at 

1st April, 
2018

Addition 
during 

the year

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 
during the 

year

Total cost 
as at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
1st April, 

2018

For the 
period

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 

during the year

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2018

Total 28.00  -  37.81 65.81  15.22  1.44  20.73  37.39  28.41 12.78 

Note 11B: Property, plant and equipment

FY 2019-20

S. 
No.

Particulars GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Cost as 
at 

1st April, 
2019

Addition 
during 

the year

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 
during the 

year

Total cost 
as at  31st 

March, 
2020

As at 
1st April, 

2019

For the 
period

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 

during the year

As at 
31st 

March, 
2020

As at 
31st 

March, 
2020

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

Total 884.06 120.54  1.46  1,003.14  655.27  77.08  1.45  730.90  272.24 228.79 

FY 2018-19

S. 
No.

Particulars GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Cost as 
at 

1st April, 
2018

Addition 
during 

the year

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 
during the 

year

Total cost 
as at  31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
1st April, 

2018

For the 
period

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 

during the year

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2018
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Total 914.21 19.39  (26.07) 884.06  647.80  39.22  31.76  655.27  228.79 266.40 

Note 11C: Intangibles

FY 2019-20

S. 
No.

Particulars GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Cost as 
at  1st 
April, 
2019

Addition 
during 

the year

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 
during the 

year

Total 
cost as 
at  31st 
March, 
2020

As 
at  1st 
April, 
2019

For 
the 

period

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 
during the 

year

As at  
31st 

March, 
2020

As at 
31st 

March, 
2020

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

Total 257.51 13.70 - 271.22  228.32  29.73 -  258.05  13.17 29.19 

FY 2018-19

S. 
No.

Particulars GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Cost as 
at 

1st April, 
2018

Addition 
during 

the year

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 
during the 

year

Total cost 
as at  31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
1st April, 

2018

For the 
period

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 

during the year

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2019

As at 
31st 

March, 
2018

Total 226.90 30.61 - 257.51  226.61  1.71 -  228.32  29.19 0.29 

Note 11D: Right to Use Asset

S. 
No.

Particulars GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK

Cost as 
at 

1 April 
2019

Addition 
during 

the year

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 
during the 

year

Total cost 
as at 

31 March 
2020

As at 
1 April 
2019

For the 
period

Adjustments/ 
Deductions 

during the year

As at 
31 March 

2020

As at 
31 March 

2020

As at 
31 March 

2019

Total  - 97.56 - 97.56 -  36.62 -  36.62  60.94 - 
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Note 11D: Right to Use Asset (contd.) 

Particulars Building
Additions  97.56 

Balance as at March 31, 2020  60.94 

Particulars Amount (in 
lakhs)

Additions  97.56 

Balance as at March 31, 2020 63.81 

Particular Amount

Total undiscounted lease liabilities   71.30 

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Total  88.90 95.48 

Note 13: Payables

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 
Trade payables
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(a)  110.31 72.44 

Other payables

(b)  - - 

 110.31 72.44 

Note 14 (a): Debt Securities

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Total 49,319.75  - 

Note 14 (b): Borrowings (Other than debt securities)

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019 
At amortised cost
Secured
Term loans
-From Banks

-From Other Parties

Unsecured
Term loans
-From Banks

Total gross (A)  1,167,114.29 823,391.94 

Total gross (B)  1,167,114.29 823,391.94 

Total (B) to tally with (A)  1,167,114.29 823,391.94 
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 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 
Interest accrued but not due

Total 539.96 809.83 

Note 16: Current Tax Liabilities

Particulars  31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Total 114.46 69.18 
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Note 17: Provisions

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Others

Total 717.24 347.61 

Note 18: Other Non-Financial Liabilities

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Total 25.61 24.01 

Note 19. Share Capital

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
No. of Shares  Amount No. of Shares  Amount 

Authorised:
500,000,000 50,000.00 500,000,000  50,000.00 

Issued, subscribed and Paid Up 180,010,134 18,001.01 180,010,134  18,001.01 

paid up

Promoter:
133,333,333 13,333.33 133,333,333  13,333.33 

Share holding more than 5% details:
133,333,333 13,333.33 133,333,333  13,333.33 

Reconciliation of the number of shares (face value Rs 10 paid up)

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

180,010,134 180,010,134 
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Rights, preferences and restrictions attaching to each class of shares including restrictions on the 
distribution of dividends and the repayment of capital:

Shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares/disinvestment, 
including the terms and amounts 

a.  Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid pursuant to contracts(s) without payment 
being received in cash: 

b.  Aggregate number and class of shares allotted as fully paid -up by way of bonus shares is:

c.   Aggregate number and class of shares bought back: 

Terms of any securities convertible into equity shares issued along with the earliest date of conversion in 
descending order starting from farthest such date:

Forfeited Shares (amount originally paid up) :

Detailed disclosure on capital management is given in Note 35.

Note 20: Other equity

Reserve and surplus

Statutory reserve (` 

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Closing balance  28,881.79  25,154.70 

(a)  Securities premium reserve

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Closing balance  2,501.27  2,501.27 

(b)  General reserve

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 
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Closing balance  9,776.54  9,776.54 

(c)  Capital reserve

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Closing balance  6,320.04  6,320.04 

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Closing balance  6,300.00  6,300.00 

(e)  Retained earning

 31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Closing balance  32,472.43  20,713.66 

 86,252.07  70,766.21 

 

Nature and purpose of reserves:

Statutory reserve-
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Securities premium reserve 

General reserve -

Capital reserve-

Retained Earnings

Note 21: Interest income
 Year ended

31st March, 2020 
 Year ended

31st March, 2019 

(a) Interest on loans

(b)Other interest income

(I)  930.50 1,618.76 

loss
(c) Interest income from Investments

(d)Other interest income

(II) 70,135.00 34,600.51 

loss
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(III) 5,580.05 13,138.51 

76,645.56 49,357.78 

Note 22: Rental income
 -  - 

Total  11.00  4.20 

Note 23: Net gain/ (loss) (Realised & Unrealised)  Year ended
31st March, 2020 

 Year ended
31st March, 2019 

 

 Total net gain/(loss) (Realised & Unrealised) 11,149.96  900.42 

A. 

Government securities

Total 2,796.52 (6,985.79)

 T-Bills and CMBs 

Total  305.96  197.62 
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 Commercial Papers (CPs) 

Total  2.96  0.02 

Total  8.23  3.37 

Bonds & Debentures

Total 4,571.82  72.43 

Equity Shares

Total  (9.98)  37.20 

Mutual Funds

Total  7.71 1,891.55 

Derivatives

Total  (528.05)  (29.31)

7,155.15 (4,812.91)

B. Fair value changes: Unrealised

 Government Securities 
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Total
 T-Bills and CMBs 

Total

 Commercial Papers (CPs) 

Total

Total

 Bonds & Debentures 

Total
 Equity Shares 

Total
 Mutual Funds 
 Derivatives 

3,994.80 5,713.33 

11,149.96  900.42 

Note 24: Fees and commission income
 Year ended

31st March, 2020 
 Year ended

31st March, 2019 

Total  415.22  514.76 

Note 25: Other income
 Year ended

31st March, 2020 
 Year ended

31st March, 2019 

Total  35.42  21.92 
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Note 26: Finance Cost

 Year ended
31st March, 2020 

 Year ended
31st March, 2019 

Interest on borrowings

Total 51,925.90 40,343.67 

Note 27: Fee and commission expense

 Year ended
31st March, 2020 

 Year ended
31st March, 2019 

Total 1,063.20  535.16 

 Year ended 
31st March, 2020 

 Year ended 
31st March, 2019 

Total 1,149.88 714.04 
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Note 29: Other expenses
 Year ended 

31st March, 2020 
 Year ended 

31st March, 2019 

Total 873.93 864.05 

(a) Payment to Auditors
 Year ended

31st March, 2020 
 Year ended

31st March, 2019 
As auditor:

In other capacity:

47.79 19.78

(b)
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Note 30: Exceptional Items

 Year ended
31st March, 2020 

 Year ended
31st March, 2019 

Total  8,121.58 - 

Note 31: Earning Per Share (EPS)

2019-20 2018-19

Earnings per share 

(I)

Particulars 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
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(II)

(A)

Key assumptions  31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Particulars 1-Apr-19  Service 
cost 
(a)

 Net 
interest 
expense 

(b)

 Sub-total 
included in paid 

Remeasurement 
gains/ (losses) 

in other 
comprehensive 

income 

31-Mar-20

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) = 

Particulars 1-Apr-18  Service 
cost 
(a)

 Net 
interest 
expense 

(b)

 Sub-total 
included in paid 

Remeasurement 
gains/ (losses) 

in other 
comprehensive 

income 

31-Mar-19

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) = 
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(B) Gratuity

Key assumptions  31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Particulars 1-Apr 
-19

 Service 
cost 
(a)

 Net 
interest 
expense 

(b)

 Sub-total 
included in paid 

 Return on plan 
assets (excluding 

amounts included in 
net interest expense) 

Remeasurement 
(gains)/losses in 

other comprehensive 
income 

Contributions 
by employer 

31- Mar-
20

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) = (i) 
to (vi)

  27.50 

 - 

Particulars 1-Apr-
18

 Service 
cost 
(a)

 Net 
interest 
expense 

(b)

 Sub-total 
included in paid 

 Return on 
plan assets 
(excluding 
amounts 

included in 
net interest 
expense) 

Remeasurement 
(gains)/

losses in other 
comprehensive 

income 

 Contributions 
by employer 

31-Mar-
19

(i) (ii) (iii) (iv) (v) (vi) (vii) = (i) 
to (vi)

 16.17 

- 

(C) Expected payment for future years

(i) Gratuity

Based on past service  31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Total expected payments  353.91 205.69 
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Based on terminal service  31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Total expected payments  533.13 318.38 

(ii) Leave encashment

Based on terminal service  31st March, 2020  31st March, 2019 

Total expected payments  846.83 342.26 

(D) Sensitivity analysis
(i) Gratuity

 Assumptions 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19

 Discount rate  Future salary increases Attrition Rate

(ii) Leave encashment

 Assumptions 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
 Discount rate  Future salary increases Attrition Rate

Note 33 

2. Derivative adjustment

3 Fair value of Staff loans
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Note 34: Related party disclosures

Details of Related Party

Particulars Relationship

5. Company's consultants:

6. Standards not yet Effective
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Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

2020 2019

TOTAL  234.33  158.38 

Transactions with other related parties

 

2019-20
(Book Value)

2018-19
(Book Value)

Security Purchase
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2019-20
(Book Value)

2018-19
(Book Value)

Security Purchase Against Short Sale

Security Sale/ Redemption

Short Sale

Reverse Repo Lending

Repo
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2019-20
(Book Value)

2018-19
(Book Value)

short sale

Fee Income

Rent Paid

Bank Charges Paid

Rent booked in P&L from PNB

Term Insurance premium paid

Rent receivable from PNB

TDS receivable on rent from PNB

Interest accrued on CD

Line of credit availed

Interest paid on line of credit

Processing fee paid/payable to PNB
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Note 35: Capital management

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Particulars
1-Apr-19 Cash Flows Changes in 

fair values
Exchange 
difference

Other 31-Mar-20

Particulars
1-Apr-18  Cash Flows  Changes in 

fair values 
 Exchange 
difference 

 Other 31-Mar-19

Note 37:Contingent liabilities

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

CLAIMS AGAINST THE COMPANY NOT ACKNOWLEDGED AS DEBT
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Assessment year 2019-20 2018-19 Forum where pending

TOTAL* 1,115.23  939.41 

Note 38: Segment information

Note 39: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

Assets 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Within 12 

months
After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

 Financial assets 



PNB Gilts Annual Report 2019-20 118

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020  (` in lacs)

Note 39: Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

Assets 31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Within 12 

months
After 12 
months

Total Within 12 
months

After 12 
months

Total

 Total Assets 1,419,524.36  6,305.70 1,425,830.06  949,838.70  2,365.33 952,204.03 

 Liabilities 
 Financial liabilities 

 Total Liabilities 1,320,194.08  1,382.90 1,321,576.98  863,194.86 241.95 863,436.81 

Note 40: Risk Management

Risk management struture and policies 

(A) Liquidity risk
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31-Mar-20 1 day to  
1 month

Over  
1  month to  

2 months

Over 2  
months  to 3 

months

Over 3  
months  to 
6  months

Over 6  
months  

to 1  year

Over  1 year   
to 3 

years

Over 3 
years to 
5 years

Over 
5 

years

Total

265,091.76 

952,699.53 

 1,066,933.06 22,520.55  128,337.68  1,217,791.29 

31-Mar-19 1 day to
1 month

Over 1 
month to  2 

months 

Over 2  
months  to 3 

months

Over 3 
months  to 
6  months

Over 6  
months  

to 1  year

Over  1year  
to 3  years

Over 3  
years to 
5 years

Over 
5  

years

Total

365,003.16 

459,724.64 

787,938.78 34,083.34 - 2,705.68 824,727.80 

(B) Credit Risk

Analysis of risk concentration
DNBS (PD) CC No.178/03.02.001/2010-11

(C ) Market Risk

31-Mar-20 31-Mar-19
Carrying 
amount

Traded 
risk

Non-
traded risk

Carrying 
amount

Traded risk Non- 
traded risk

Primary risk 
sensitivity

ASSETS
Financial assets

 

Total  1,425,040.24  1,394,118.89  30,921.35 951,418.14 919,239.00  32,179.14 
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LIABILITIES 
Financial liabilities

  

 

Total  1,319,767.66 102,683.35 1,167,764.56 862,996.01 38,721.80 824,274.21 

Market risk – trading 

Objective

Limitation:

Assumptions:
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Interest Rate Risk Equity & Equity F&O Other*

2018-19 -31st March 

2018-19 -Average

2018-19- Maximum

2018-19 -Minimum

Interest Rate Risk Equity & Equity F&O Other*

2019-20 -31st March 

2019-20 -Average

2019-20- Maximum

2019-20 -Minimum

*Other includes Currency Derivative and IRF 

Back testing

Market risk – Non trading 

Interest rate risk

Note 41 Fair value measurement

41.1 Valuation principles

41.2 Valuation governance
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41.3 Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Carrying 
Value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Carrying 
Value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 
3

Total

Assets measured at 
fair value

instruments

Total derivative  97,667.49  -  97,667.49  -  97,667.49  37,467.43  37,467.43  -  37,467.43 

Financial investment 
held for trading

investment held for 
trading

 1,296,451.40  -  1,296,451.40  - 1,296,451.40 881,771.57  266.78 881,504.79  -  881,771.57 

Total assets  easured 
at fair value 

 1,394,118.89  -  1,394,118.89  - 1,394,118.89 919,239.00  266.78 918,972.22  -  919,239.00 

Liabilities measured 
at fair value 

instruments

Liabilities measured 
at fair value 

 102,683.35  38.78  102,644.57  -  102,683.35  38,721.80  -  38,721.80  -  38,721.80 

41.4   Valuation techniques

 Government Securities (Central Government Securities and State Government Securities)

  

 Treasury Bills (T-Bills)
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Commercial Papers (CP)

Corporate bonds and debentures

Equity instruments

Mutual Funds

Exchange traded derivative

Interest rate derivatives 

41.5

41.6 Valuation adjustments
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41.7  Impact of valuation adjustments 

2019-20 2018-19

Type of adjustment

Total

41.8

31st March, 2020 31st March, 2019

Carrying 
Value

Fair Value Carrying 
Value

Fair Value

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial 
Assets: 

assets 
30,921.35 639.34  30,282.01 -  30,921.35 32,179.14  10,580.40 21,598.74 - 32,179.14 

Financial 
Liabilities: 

liabilities
1,217,084.31  - 1,217,084.31 - 1,217,084.31 824,274.21  - 824,274.21 - 824,274.21 
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Financial asset at amortised cost

NOTE 42: DISCLOSURES ON INTEREST RATE SWAPS 

Hedging Swaps Trading Swaps

NOTE 43: ISSUER COMPOSITIONS OF INVESTEMENTS IN NON-GOVERNMENT SECURITIES 
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Issuer Name Migrated Rating Rating Action
SREI Equipment Finance Limited A AA to A

(` 

Sl. 
No.

Issuer Book Value Extent of 
Private 

Placement

Extent of Below 
Investment 

Grade Securities

Extent of 
Unlisted 

Securities

Extent of 
Unrated 

Securities

NOTE 44: CRAR, NET OWNED FUNDS AND RELATED INFORMATION 

Sl. No. Particulars Current Year Prev. Year
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Interest Rate Swaps 

Sl. No. Particulars Current Year Prev. Year

Quantitative Disclosures of Interest Rate Swaps for Financial Year 2019-20 are as under: 

Sl. No. Particulars Current Year Prev. Year

Qualitative Disclosure on risk exposure in derivatives 
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Quantitative Disclosures of Interest Rate Futures & Currency Derivatives for Financial Year 2019-20 are  

as under: 

Sl. No. Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Quantitative Disclosures of Exchange Traded Interest Rate Futures for FY 2019-20 are as under: 

S.No. Particulars Current Year Previous Year

NOTE 45: REAL ESTATE EXPOSURES

Exposure to Real Estate Sector 

Category Current 
Year(Book 
Value)

Previous 
year(Book 
Value)
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020  (` in lacs)

a. 
b. 

NOTE 46: ASSET LIABILITY MANAGEMENT

FY-2019-20 

1 day to 1 
month

Over 1 
month to 
2 months

Over 2 
months 

to 3 
months

Over 3 
months  

to 6 
months

Over 6 
months  

to 1 
year

Over 1 
year to 
3 years

Over 3 
years  to 
5 years

Over 5 
years  

Total

Liabilities

FY 2018-19 
1 day to 1 

month
Over 1 

month to 
2 months

Over 2 
months  

to 3 
months

Over 3 
months  to 
6 months

Over 6 
months  
to 1 year

Over 
1year  
to 3 

years

Over 3 
years  to 
5 years

Over 5 
years  

Total

NOTE 47: Details of Corporate Social Responsibility expenses:
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020  (` in lacs)

In cash/cheque Yet to be paid in 
cash/ cheque

Total

NOTE 48: Customer Complaints

NOTE 49: Exposure to capital market 

Particulars Current Year 
(Book Value)

Previous Year 
(Book Value) 

Total exposure to capital market Nil 269.01
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020  (` in lacs)

NOTE 50: Details of Repo and Reverse Repo Transactions  

Particulars Min Outstanding 
during the year

Max Outstanding 
during the year

Daily Average 
outstanding during 

the year

March 31,  
2020

& Loss:

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

NOTE 53 : Investments (Stock-In-Trade) 

Particulars Current Year Previous Year
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020  (` in lacs)

NOTE 54: Disclosure of penalties

NOTE 55: Disclosures in compliance with Regulation 52(4) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the year ended March 31, 2020 

Rating Agencies Rating Programme Rating Assigned Migration Rating Amount

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020  (` in lacs)

Annexure A 

Listed/
Unlisted

Previous 
Interest 
Amount

Previous 
Principal 
amount

Previous 
Due 

date for 
payment of 

Interest

Whether 
the 

previous 
interest 

has been 
paid/not

Next due 
date for 

payment of 
Interest

Next 
Interest 
Amount

Previous 
due 

date for 
repayment 

of 
principal

Whether 
the 

previous 
principal 

repayment  
has been 

paid or not

Next due 
date for 

repayment 
of 

principal

Next 
principal 

redemption 
amount

NOTE 56: COVID-19 IMPACT

For and on behalf of the Board

 Rasool Singhal & Co 

(CA. Kanti Kumar Gupta)

(Vishesh Kumar Srivastava) (Vikas Goel) (Sunita Gupta) (Monika Kochar)
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 (` 

Particulars
Liabilities Side :

(1)
company inclusive of Interest accrued thereon but not paid:

Amount 
outstanding

Amount overdue

 1,216,434.04 

Assets Side :

(2) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables 
(other than those included in (4) below):

(3) Break up of leased Assets and stock on hire and other 
assets counting towards AFC activities

SCHEDULE TO THE BALANCE SHEET OF A NON-DEPOSIT TAKING NON-
BANKING FINANCIAL COMPANY
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 (` 

(4) Break-up of Investments / Stock-in-trade :
Amount 

outstanding
Current investments (Stock-in-trade):

1.    Quoted :

2.   Unquoted :

Long Term Investments :

1.    Quoted :

2.   Unquoted :
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 (` 

TOTAL :  1,287,542.29 

(5)
(2) and (3) above :
(Please see Note 2 below)

Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured

Note:

and long term) in shares
and Securities (both quoted and unquoted) :

Category
Market Value/

Break up or fair 
value or NAV

Book Value 

 1,296,451.40  1,287,542.29 

(7) Other Information

Amount
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 (` 

Notes :

For and on behalf of the Board

 Rasool Singhal & Co 

(CA. Kanti Kumar Gupta)

(Vishesh Kumar Srivastava) (Vikas Goel) (Sunita Gupta) (Monika Kochar)
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FINANCIALS AT A GLANCE
FINANCIAL PARAMETERS

2019-20 2018-19
(%) (%)

Financial Performance

Human Assets
`

`

Per Share Data
`

`
`

`
`

`
`

Financials: Last 10 Years
` 

Financials \ Financial Year 2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

TOTAL INCOME 103.09 165.30 288.65 346.26 410.01 343.42 500.54 351.48 508.01 882.6

EXPENDITURE 59.05 135.66 199.88 255.56 277.47 291.95 244.00 350.16 424.99 551.58

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 44.04 29.64 88.77 90.70 132.55 51.47 256.54 1.32 83.02 249.80

PROFIT AFTER TAX 30.58 21.05 61.25 61.38 88.27 34.50 167.17 1.41 52.86 186.35

NET WORTH 568.92 574.69 620.08 662.53 718.06 731.22 898.36 843.23 885.66 1002.19
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NOTICE

PNB Gilts Ltd.

Tel : Fax : 
Website - E-mail ID 

CIN : 

ORDINARY BUSINESS

` `

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS 
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(Monika Kochar) 

NOTES :
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` `
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`

`
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18. NON-RECEIPT OF DIVIDEND

  

 a. VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS

    Details on Step 1 is mentioned below: 
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Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

 Your User ID is:

company

   Details on Step 2 is mentioned below: 
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   General Guidelines for shareholders 

         Process for registration of email id for obtaining Annual Report and user id/password for 
e-voting and updation of bank account mandate for receipt of dividend:
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 c.  THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER

 d.  PROCEDURE TO RAISE QUESTIONS / SEEK CLARIFICATIONS WITH RESPECT TO ANNUAL REPORT
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

Part I.   EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 
102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)  

Item No. 5

 

(Monika Kochar) 
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PART II –  PURSUANT  TO  REGULATION  36(3)  OF  LISTING  REGULATIONS AND IN TERMS OF SECRETARIAL 
STANDARDS ON GENERAL MEETING (SS-II) ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF COMPANIES SECRETARIES OF 
INDIA,   BRIEF  PARTICULARS  OF  THE DIRECTORS TO BE APPOINTED/ RE-APPOINTED ARE AS UNDER:

Indian
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E-COMMUNICATION REGISTRATION FORM*

REG : Green Initiative in Corporate Governance

 

  

  

  

REQUEST In addition to above, please send a test mail from your Email ID (mentioning therein your folio no. and your 
intention to avail e-communication facility) to our email id (m.kochar@pnbgilts.com) so that punching errors be avoided 
at the time of feeding of information in the system, which will be done on receipt of duly signed format.

Important Notes :
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Notes






